






 
 

1                                                                                 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ May 1, 2014 at 5:30 PM     

 
   5:30 pm - Tour of Cottages at Northwood 
   Council will leave from Pat Bryson at 5:30 and reconvene at 7:00 pm for Regular City Council Meeting 
   (No action will be taken by City Council during the tour) 
 
     Council left on the tour at 5:30 pm 
     Council returned to Pat Bryson at pm 
  
   7:00 pm – Regular Council Meeting 
  
1. Open meeting, Invocation 

Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Lynch delivered the invocation 
 

2. National Anthem and Pledges of Allegiance presented by Leander Police Department Honor Guard 
Members: Sgt. Steve Ward (Coordinator), Sgt. Anthony Mayberry (Asst. Coordinator), Cpl. Aaron 
George, Cpl. Jason York, Ofc. Bobby Amidon, Ofc. John Carnley and Ofc. Elizabeth Conrad 
The Leander Police Department Honor Guard presented the colors 
 

3. Roll Call 
All present 
 

4. Proclamation recognizing National Police Week 2014  
Council Member Abruzzese read the Proclamation and presented it to the Leander Police 
Department 
 

     5.  Staff Comments: Wayne Watts, City Engineer – closing of E. Crystal Falls intersection’ 
           Wayne Watts, City Engineer told council about the closing of the E. Crystal Falls and 183  
           Intersection on Saturday May 3rd for road construction 
 
     6.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  

       Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins.   
        Emily Pataki 607 Boca Chica Drive Cedar Park – announced she is running for the PEC Board   
        Of Directors for District 2 
     
        Arnold LeVine – announced he is running for the PEC Board of Directors for District 3 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                   Mayor – Christopher Fielder  
                     Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette       Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese  
                     Place 2 – Kirsten Lynch              Place 5 – Jason Dishongh (Mayor Pro Tem) 
          Place 3 – Simon Garcia               Place 6 – David Siebold  
                                                   City Manager – Kent Cagle 



 
 

2                                                                                 

 
        
 
 
7. Proclamation designating May 2014 as “Cancer Awareness Month” and May 3 & 4 as “Relay for Life” 

Day in Leander  Sponsored by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh 
Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh read the Proclamation and presented it to Andrew Williams and 
Members of the Relay for Life Event staff 
 

8. Update from Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh and Council Member Garcia on the BCRUA 
Council Member Garcia gave an update on the BCRUA 
 
 

   
  9.  Approval of the minutes: April 17, 2014    
 
10.  Second Reading of an ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-006: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
       Composite Zoning Ordinance for several tract of land located to the west of the western terminus of  
       Osage Drive in the Bluffs at Crystal Falls Subdivision, Leander, Williamson County. Texas 
 
11.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Reagan’s  
       Overlook Phase One 
 
12.  Consider a License Agreement with Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority for Metro Drive  
 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 

 

13.  Public Hearing on Ordinance Case #14-OR-001: Consider amendments to the Subdivision Ordinance 
to add provisions for temporary stockpiling of materials, to add provisions for trail corridors, and to 
modify the exceptions associated with block width requirements 

        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Action on Ordinance Case #14-OR-001: amendments to the Subdivision Ordinance 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve with amendments as recommended by 
        Staff and P & Z.  Second by Council Member Lynch.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

 14.  Public Hearing on Comprehensive Plan Case #14-CPA-001: Consider amendments to the Leander 
Roadway Plan as set forth in the Comprehensive Plan 

        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
  
         Action on Comprehensive Plan Case #14-CPA-001: Consider amendments to the Leander Roadway 

Plan as set forth in the Comprehensive Plan 
 
         Motion made by Council Member Garcia to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
         Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 



 
 

3                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
15.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #14-Z-001: Consider a zoning change for 5.52 acres, more or less, 

for two parcels of land located along Ronald Reagan Blvd. on the east side, south of High Lonesome 
Trail and north of CR 264 from interim zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural and SFS-2-B, Single 
Family Suburban to GC-3-B, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 

       Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC on behalf of Phillip C. Joseph 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #14-Z-001: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for two parcels of land located along Ronald Reagan Blvd. on the east side and south of High 

Lonesome Trail and north of CR 264, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve LC-2-B as recommended by the P & Z.  

Second by Council Member Abruzzese. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 

 
16.  Consider action on Zoning Case #13-Z-025: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning  
       Ordinance for a tract of land located on the northwest corner of Osage Drive and Highland Trail,  
       Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Jeff Estes 1920 Buffalo Speedway – spoke against 
       Thomas M. Yambrick, 1908 Western Justice – spoke against         
        Carl Morman 1821 Cross Bow Trail – spoke against 
        Steve Kovacs, 2628 Homecoming – spoke against 
        Laura Yambrick, 1908 Western Justice – spoke against 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Fielder to deny the request and waive fees for applicant to resubmit at  
       a later date. Second by Mayor Pro Tem Dishongh. Motion passes, all voting “aye”  
  
17.  First reading of an ordinance annexing an area of land being 304.13 acres, more or less, and   
       52.290 acres, more or less, being generally described as the Ridgmar Landing area north of East 

Crystal Falls Parkway, south of RR 2243 and west of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and including the abutting 
streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson County, Texas and adjacent and 
contiguous to the city limits 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Navarrette. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye”  
 
18.  First reading of an ordinance annexing an area of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, being  generally 

located north of CR 264 and east of Ronald Reagan Blvd. and including the abutting streets, 
roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous 
to the city limits 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 

  Motion made by Council Member Siebold  to approve.  Second by Council Member Lynch. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
       
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 



 
 

4                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 

               19. First reading of an ordinance annexing an area of land being 594 acres, more or less, being            
generally located along the planned northern extension of Lakeline Blvd. to Old 2243 West and 
including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; being located in Williamson and Travis 
Counties, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits 

                      Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
  

                        Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
                       Motion passes, all voting “aye”  
     

20.  Consider approval of an annexation Development Agreement pursuant to Chapter 43.035 of the Local 
Government Code between the City of Leander and Larry T. Gilbreath for two parcels of land identified 
by Williamson Central Appraisal District as R366161 and R032167 

        Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 

  Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Lynch. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
21.  Consider approval of an annexation Development Agreement pursuant to Chapter 43.035 of the Local 

Government Code between the City of Leander and Linda Hall, an individual, and Linda Hall, as 
trustee of the Linda Heierman Trust for three parcels of land identified by Travis Central Appraisal 
District as property IDs 353692, 353622, and 382587 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
  

  Motion made by Council Member Siebold to approve.  Second by Council Member Garcia. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
22.  Consider approval of an annexation Development Agreement pursuant to Chapter 43.035 of the Local 

Government Code between the City of Leander and Mr. and Mrs. John Gilpin, for nine parcels of land 
identified by Travis Central Appraisal District as property IDs 353973, 353974, and 382596 and 
Williamson Central Appraisal District as property IDs R514061, R519115, R383674, R032162, 
R514060 and R032165 

       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem  Dishongh to approve.  Second by Council Member Siebold. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye”  
  
23.  Consider acceptance of a Petition for the Creation of a Public Improvement District to Finance  
       Improvements in the Oak Creek Subdivision and setting a public hearing on advisability of the  
       proposed improvements. 
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Navarrette to  accept the PID petition and accept the public  
       hearing date for June 5, 2014.  Second by Council Member Siebold. Motion passes, all voting   
       “aye” 
 
24.  Discussion and possible action regarding the marketing and branding of the Transit Oriented  
       Development District (TOD)   
       Tom Yantis, Director of Development Services explained 
 
        Council discussed the logo and discussed the brochure as presented 
        No action taken. 



 
 

5                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
25.  Council Members Closing Statements 
       Council Members gave their closing statements 
 
26.  Adjournment 
        With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:45 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              Attest: 
 
   _________________________________                     ________________________________ 
   Christopher Fielder, Mayor            Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 
 

Executive Summary 

 

May 15, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision 
Infrastructure Improvements for: The Bluffs at Crystal Falls Section 2, Phase 2E 
 
Background:  The subdivision infrastructure improvements required for The Bluffs at 
Crystal Falls Section 2, Phase 2E have been installed, inspected, and found to be 
satisfactorily completed.  All documentation required for acceptance of the subdivision has 
been received, including record drawings, statement of substantial completion prepared by a 
Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Texas, copies of all inspection reports and 
certified test results, electronic files of the improvements and final plat, affidavit of all bills 
paid, and a two-year term Maintenance Bond. The Maintenance Bond will commence its two 
year term upon City Council acceptance, as anticipated, on May 15, 2014, which will 
provide warranty and maintenance coverage for the infrastructure improvements through 
May 15, 2016.  The Engineering Department will perform a formal inspection of the 
improvements approximately 30 days prior to the expiration of the Maintenance Bond to 
assure that any defects in materials, workmanship, or maintenance are corrected prior to 
expiration of the bond. 
 
Origination:   Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration: N/A 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends City Council’s formal acceptance of the subdivision 
infrastructure improvements for The Bluffs at Crystal Falls Section 2, Phase 2E. 
   
Attachments:  Engineer’s Concurrence Letter, Maintenance Bond, Affidavits of All Bills 
Paid, and Final Pay Estimates. 
 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 























AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second reading of an ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 5.52 
acres of land, more or less, into the corporate limits of the City, including the abutting 
roadways and rights-of-way, at the request of the property owner; approving a service plan for 
the annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an 
effective date. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first and second public 
hearings were conducted as scheduled.  The first and second public hearings were conducted as 
scheduled.  The first reading of the ordinance was approved on May 1, 2014.  This is the second 
and final reading of the ordinance. This is a voluntary annexation.  
     
Origination:  Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC on behalf of Phillip C. Joseph. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the second reading of the 
ordinance.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 5/7/14 



 ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ANNEXING 5.52 ACRES OF 

LAND, MORE OR LESS, INTO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY, 
INCLUDING THE ABUTTING ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AT THE 
REQUEST OF THE PROPERTY OWNER; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE 
ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas, is a home rule municipality authorized by State law to 
annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of the property, as hereinafter described, made written request for the City 
to annex such property in compliance with the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is adjacent and contiguous to the present city limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard and has decided to grant the owner’s request that the City annex 
said property; 
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this Ordinance in 
accordance with §43.063 of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than twenty (20) 
days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published not more than twenty (20) nor less than ten 
(10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the property to be annexed according to the 
Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 
 
SECTION 2.  All portions of the following described property, including the abutting roadways and 
rights-of-way (hereinafter referred to as the “Annexed Property”), not previously annexed into the City, 
are hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

All portions of that certain tract or parcel of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in the instrument recorded 
under Document Number 2013103652, Official Public Records of Williamson County, 
Texas and being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all purposes.   



 
 
SECTION 3.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this Ordinance, 
made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
SECTION 4.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the Annexed Property shall be entitled to all of 
the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, and are 
further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full force and effect and all those 
which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
SECTION 5.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and amended be and 
hereby are amended so as to include the Annexed Property as part of the City of Leander. 
 
SECTION 6.  That the Annexed Property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as provided in 
the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established therefore. 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the 
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
SECTION 8.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
SECTION 9.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Property Description: +/- 5.52 acre tract 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation proceedings 
for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is exempt 
from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 



provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the landowner(s) 
or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the plans 
and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will be 
provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water service, 

water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, by the 
utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the 
subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the 
ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of 
water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of such 
facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, 
conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the 
City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  
The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance 
and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request 
under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs 
and request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and 
such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the 
City’s water utility system. 



 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof as 
applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, 
or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If 
connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the 
internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of facilities 
necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  
Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site 
improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the same 
terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of 
the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to 
time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its 
usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The 
ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject property owner requests and is able to connect to 
the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property and 
other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The maintenance of 
the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 
 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and following 
installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city ordinance, 
including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic control devices 
and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public streets, roadways and 
rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 



  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 
construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore 
is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be initiated 
after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in a 
similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  No 
additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same as 
similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the Annexation 
Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached.  

 





AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second reading of an ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 78 
acres of land, more or less, located in Travis and Williamson counties, and including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; 
making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for 
open meetings and other related matters. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first and second public 
hearings were conducted as scheduled.  The first reading of the ordinance was approved on May 
1, 2014.  This is the second and final reading of the ordinance. This is an involuntary annexation. 
 
Council approved annexation development agreements with three property owners within this 
annexation area pursuant to Chapter 43.035 of the Local Government Code.  The area subject to 
the annexation has been modified to reflect the agreements.  
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the second reading of the 
ordinance.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 5/7/14 



 ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ANNEXING 78 

ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED IN TRAVIS AND 
WILLIAMSON COUNTIES, AND INCLUDING THE ABUTTING 
STREETS, ROADWAYS, AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY; APPROVING A 
SERVICE PLAN FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER 
RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), is a home rule municipality 
authorized by State law and the City's Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to 
the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, in compliance with §43.021, Tex. Local Gov't Code, 
instituted proceedings for the annexation of certain property more particularly described herein (the 
“subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property hereby annexed is adjacent and contiguous to the present 
City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property, being in excess of 1,000 feet in width, is adjacent to the 
corporate limits of the City and the boundaries of the city limits are contiguous to the subject 
property on at least two sides, as shown in the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with §43.035, Tex. Local Gov't Code, the City extended a 
written offer to enter a development agreement with applicable landowner(s); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard arguments with respect to such annexation and has 
decided to annex the area;  
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this 
Ordinance in accordance with § 43.063, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than 
twenty (20) days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City and the territory proposed to be annexed not more than twenty (20) nor less 
than ten (10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the subject property to be annexed 
according to the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 SECTION 2. That the following described property, including the abutting streets, 
roadways and rights-of-way, is hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

   North Lakeline Boulevard Area.   All that certain area of land containing 78 
acres, more or less, located in both Travis County, Texas and Williamson 
County, Texas, being more particularly described and shown in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto. 

 
 SECTION 3.  In the event of conflict between the description of the subject property in this 
Ordinance and the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “A” shall control. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this 
Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the subject property shall be 
entitled to all of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B”, and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full 
force and effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 SECTION 6.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and 
amended, be and hereby are amended so as to include the subject property as part of the City of 
Leander. 
 
 SECTION 7.  That the subject property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as 
provided in the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established 
therefore. 
 
 SECTION 8.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 SECTION 9.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 SECTION 10.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. 
Gov't. Code. 
 



 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of ___________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



Exhibit “A” 
 

             Property Description: Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) instituted and completed annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
properties”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties are not included in the municipal annexation plan and 
are exempt from the requirements thereof ; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties will be provided municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within the City limits and capital 
improvements necessary to offer such municipal services on the same terms and conditions as other 
similarly situated properties within the City and in accordance with City policies, regulations, and 
ordinances; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject properties into the City.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services shall be provided to the subject properties on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  The subject properties are located within the City’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction and are more particularly described in the Ordinance to which this 
service plan is attached.  Pursuant to this Plan, the following services shall be provided 
immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 

services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and 

the volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 



 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 

to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City’s police 
power regulations as set forth in duly adopted ordinances; provided that the use of all 
property therein shall be grandfathered to the extent provided by state law.  The subject 
properties shall be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject 
properties upon request of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and 
the City Council will consider rezoning the subject properties at future times in response to 
requests submitted by the landowners or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Depending on the plans for development or 
redevelopment of the subject properties, the following municipal services will be provided on a 
schedule and at increasing levels of service as requested in compliance with applicable City 
ordinances, rules and regulations for providing such services:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the 
utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are 
located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the 
costs of line extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service 
to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines 
within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided 



by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied 
to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, 
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted 
and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance 
policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the 
same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances 
of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 
regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance, as appropriate, of existing public streets and rights-of-way that are 

within the maintenance jurisdiction of the City and other streets that are hereafter 
constructed and finally accepted by the City within the maintenance jurisdiction of the 
City as follows: 
 

 (i) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.;  



 
 (ii)  Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City; 
 
 (iii) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is 
determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
 (iv) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
 (v) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City. 
 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  Water and wastewater facilities that are 
identified in the Capital Improvement Plan, as and when funded pursuant to such Plan.  Upon 
development of the subject properties or redevelopment, the landowners will be responsible for the 
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect 
at the time of development or redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at 
this time to service the subject properties the same as similarly situated properties.   
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal descriptions of the subject properties are as set forth in 
exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached. 
 
 



OLD 2243 WEST

RM 2243

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

N BAGDAD RD

CR 279
S BAGDAD RD

Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ
County Line
Development Agreement Areas

Proposed Annexation Areas
Proposed Annexation Area

Ë
0 750 1,500

Feet

Annexation Boundary Area
prior to Development Agreements
approximately 594 Acres
Annexation Area post
Development Agreements
approximately 78 Acres



AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Consideration of a License Agreement for the installation and 

maintenance of irrigation within the City right-of-way. 
 
Background: The Reagan’s Overlook Homeowners Association has requested a 

license agreement to allow them to install and maintain signage, 
landscaping, irrigation within the City right-of-way of Ronald 
Reagan Blvd, Vista Heights, and Limestone Creek Road.  

  
Origination: Applicant:  Brian Williams on behalf of Reagan’s Overlook 

Homeowners Association. 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the proposed license agreement. 
 
Attachments: 1.  License Agreement  
 2.  Exhibits 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director    
  
 05/07/2014 



 A-1 

 LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 

The City of Leander, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation and political subdivision 
of the State of Texas situated in Williamson and Travis County, Texas (“the City”), and 
Reagan’s Overlook Homeowners Association, Inc., a Texas nonprofit corporation (the 
“Licensee”), enter into this License Agreement (“Agreement”) on this the     day of                  , 
2014, upon the terms and conditions set forth below. 
 
I.   PURPOSE OF LICENSE AGREEMENT.  The City grants to Licensee permission to 
use the property, located within the right-of-way of Ronald Reagan Boulevard, Vista Heights 
Drive, and Limestone Creek Road shown on Exhibit “A-1” and Exhibit “A-2” attached hereto 
and incorporated herein for all  purposes (the “Licensed Property”), for the following purposes 
only: (1) the installation and maintenance of a sign identifying the Reagan’s Overlook 
Subdivision and providing related information, that shall meet the requirements of the Sign 
Ordinance (the “Sign”); (2) the installation of landscaping; (3) the installation of an irrigation 
system for the landscaping; and (4) the repair, maintenance and replacement of the Sign, 
landscaping and irrigation system, within right-of-way of Ronald Reagan Boulevard, Vista 
Heights, and Limestone Creek Road shown on Exhibit “A-1” and Exhibit “A-2” hereto. The 
Sign, landscaping and irrigation system are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the 
“Improvements.” 
 
 The City makes this grant solely to the extent of its right, title and interest in the Licensed 
Property, without any express or implied warranties. 
 
 Licensee agrees that all construction installation and maintenance permitted by this 
Agreement shall be done in compliance with plans and specifications approved in writing by the 
City Engineer and all applicable City, County, State and/or Federal laws, ordinances, regulations 
and policies now existing or later adopted. 
 
 Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Licensee shall be liable for, and 
shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all damages, causes of action, and claims 
arising out of or in connection with Licensee’s installation, operation, maintenance or removal of 
the Improvements permitted under this Agreement. 
 
II.    ANNUAL FEE.  No annual fee shall be due in connection with this License Agreement. 
 
III.   CITY’S RIGHT TO LICENSED PROPERTY.  This Agreement is expressly subject 
and subordinate to the present and future right of the City, its successors, assigns, lessees, 
grantees, and Licensee, to construct, install, establish, maintain, use, operate, and renew any 
public utilities facilities, franchised public utilities, rights-of-way, roadways, or streets on, 
beneath, or above the surface of the Licensed Property.  The uses of the Licensed Property are 
subject to the City’s right to interfere with or destroy Licensee’s use of the Licensed Property, or 
any property or the Improvements placed thereon or therein by Licensee, if such use or action is 
determined necessary by the City.  
 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the City retains the right to 



 A-2 

enter upon the Licensed Property, at any time and without notice, and assuming no obligation to 
Licensee, to remove any of the Improvements or alterations thereof whenever such removal is 
deemed necessary for: (a) exercising the City’s rights or duties with respect to the Licensed 
Property; (b) protecting persons or property; or (c) the public health or safety. 
 
IV.   INSURANCE.  Licensee shall, at its sole expense, provide a commercial general liability 
insurance policy, written by a company acceptable to the City and licensed to do business in 
Texas, with a combined single limit of not less than $600,000.00, which coverage may be 
provided in the form of a rider and/or endorsement to a previously existing insurance policy.  
The City may require the Licensee to increase the combined single limit of such coverage from 
time to time in the discretion of the City.  Such insurance coverage shall specifically name the 
City as an additional-insured.  The insurance shall cover all perils arising from the activities of 
Licensee, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors, relative to this Agreement.  Licensee 
shall be responsible for any deductibles stated in the policy.  A true copy of each such policy 
shall be delivered to the City Manager of City on or before the Licensee’s use or occupancy of 
the Licensed Property. 
 
 Licensee shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse.  
All insurance certificates shall include a clause to the effect that the policy shall not be canceled, 
reduced, restricted or otherwise limited until forty-five (45) days after the City has received 
written notice as evidenced by a return receipt of registered or certified mail. 
 
V.   INDEMNIFICATION.  Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City 
and its officers, agents and employees against all claims, suits, demands, judgments, expenses, 
including attorney’s fees, or other liability for personal injury, death, or damage to any person or 
property which arises from or is in any manner caused by the Licensee’s construction, 
maintenance or use of the Licensed Property.  This indemnification provision, however, shall not 
apply to any claims, suits, damage, costs, losses, or expenses (i) for which the City shall have 
been compensated by insurance provided under Paragraph IV, above, or (ii) arising solely from 
the negligent or willful acts of the City; provided that for the purposes of the foregoing, the 
City’s entering into this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a “negligent or willful act.” 
 
VI.   CONDITIONS:    
 
 A.   Licensee’s Responsibilities.  Licensee will be responsible for any and all damage 
to or relocation of existing facilities.  Further, Licensee shall reimburse the City for all costs of 
replacing or repairing any property of the City, or of others, that is damaged by or on behalf of 
Licensee as a result of activities under this Agreement. 
 
 B. Maintenance.  Licensee shall maintain the Licensed Property by keeping the area 
free of debris and litter.  Removal of dead or dying plants shall also be handled by Licensee at its 
expense.  Further, the City may require Licensee to take action to maintain the Licensed Property 
including, but not limited to, the removal of dead or dying vegetation.  Such removal shall be 
completed within thirty (30) days following receipt of a written request from the City.  
 
 C. Removal or Modification. Licensee agrees that removal or modification of any of 



 A-3 

the Improvements now existing or to be later placed on the Licensed Property shall be at 
Licensee’s expense.  Provided the City has given prior written approval of the plans and 
specifications for the Improvements, said removal or modification shall be at Licensee’s sole 
discretion.   
 
  

D. Default.  In the event that Licensee fails to maintain the Licensed Property or 
otherwise comply with the terms or conditions as set forth herein, the City shall give Licensee 
written notice thereof, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set 
forth below.  Licensee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice to take 
action to remedy the failure complained of, and, if Licensee does not satisfactorily remedy the 
same within the thirty (30) day period, the City may perform the work or contract for the 
completion of the work.  Licensee agrees to pay within thirty (30) days of written demand by the 
City, all reasonable costs expenses incurred by the City in completing the work. 
 

    City Address: 
 
    City of Leander 
    Attn: City Manager 
    P. O. Box 319 
    Leander, Texas 78646-0319 
 

     with copy to: 
 
     Knight & Partners 
     Attorneys at Law 
     223 West Anderson Lane, Ste. A-105 
     Austin, Texas 78752 
     Telephone: (512) 323-5778 
     Facsimile: (512) 323-5773 
     Email: attorneys@cityattorneytexas.com 
 
     Licensee’s Address: 
 

Reagan’s Overlook Homeowners Association, Inc. 
c/o Premier Communities 
Attn:  Ivan Herlinsky 
3103 Bee Cave Road, Suite 100 
Austin, Texas 78746 

 
     with copies to: 
 

   Land Buddies, LLC 
   Attn:  Joseph W. Straub 
   4408 Spicewood Springs Road 
   Austin, Texas  76759 
   Telephone: (512) 231-155 
   Facsimile: (512)    
   Email: jwstraub@hnsdevelopers.com 
  



 A-4 

  Armbrust & Brown, PLLC 
  Attn:  Kevin M. Flahive 
  100 Congress Avenue, Suite 1300 
  Austin, Texas  78701 
  Telephone: (512) 435-2333 
  Facsimile: (512) 435-2360 
  Email: kflahive@abaustin.com 

 
 
VII.   COMMENCEMENT AND TERMINATION BY ABANDONMENT.  This 
Agreement shall begin with the effective date and continue thereafter for so long as the Licensed 
Property shall be used for the purposes set forth herein.  If Licensee abandons the use of all or 
any part of the Licensed Property for the purposes set forth in this Agreement, this Agreement 
shall expire and terminate, as to the portion or portions abandoned, following thirty (30) days 
written notice by the City to the Licensee or by Licensee to the City.  If all or a part of the 
Licensed Property is abandoned by Licensee, the City shall thereafter have the same complete 
title to the Licensed Property so abandoned as though this Agreement had never been made, and 
shall have the right to enter on the Licensed Property and terminate the rights of Licensee, its 
successors and assigns hereunder, to the abandoned part of the Licensed Property.  All 
installations of Licensee on a portion of the Licensed Property that is abandoned shall be deemed 
property of the City unless removed with the consent of the City. 
 
VIII. TERMINATION:    
 
 A. Termination by Licensee.  This Agreement may be terminated by Licensee by 
delivering written notice of termination to the City not later than thirty (30) days before the 
effective date of termination.  If Licensee terminates, then it shall remove all installations that it 
made from the Licensed Property within the thirty day notice period, at its sole cost and expense.  
Failure to do so shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 
 
 B. Termination by City.  Notwithstanding any other term, provision or condition of 
this Agreement, subject only to prior written notification to Licensee or its successor-in-interest, 
this Agreement is revocable by the City if: 
 

1. The Improvements, or a portion of them, interfere with the City’s right-of-way; 
 
 2. Use of the Licensed Property becomes necessary for a public purpose; 
 

3. The Improvements, or a portion of them, constitute a danger to the public which 
the City deems not be remediable by alteration, repair or maintenance; 

 
4. Despite thirty (30) days written notice to Licensee, maintenance or alteration 

necessary to alleviate a danger to the public has not been made; or 
 

5. Licensee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
including, but not limited to the insurance requirements specified herein. 

 



 A-5 

 If Licensee abandons or fails to maintain the Licensed Property, and the City receives no 
substantive response within thirty (30) days following written notification to Licensee, then the 
City may remove and/or replace all of the Improvements and collect from Licensee the City’s 
actual expenses incurred in connection therewith. 
 
IX. EMINENT DOMAIN.  If eminent domain is exerted on the Licensed Property the City 
will, to the extent permitted by law, cooperate with Licensee to effect the removal of Licensee’s 
affected installations and the Improvements thereon, at Licensee’s sole expense.  Licensee shall 
be entitled to retain all monies paid by the condemning authority to Licensee for Licensee’s 
installations taken, if any. 
 
X. INTERPRETATION.  This Agreement shall, in the event of any dispute over its intent, 
meaning or application, shall be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and neither more strongly for 
or against either party. 
 
XI. APPLICATION OF LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state 
of Texas.  If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction invalidates any part of this 
Agreement, then the remaining parts shall be enforced, to the extent possible, consistent with the 
intent of the parties as evidenced by this Agreement. 
 
XII. VENUE.  Venue for all lawsuits concerning this Agreement will be in the Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 
XIII. COVENANT RUNNING WITH LAND; WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  This Agreement 
and all of the covenants herein shall run with the land; therefore, the conditions set forth herein 
shall inure to and bind each party’s successors and assigns.  Either party may waive any default 
of the other at any time by written instrument, without affecting or impairing any right arising 
from any subsequent or other default. 
 
XIV. ASSIGNMENT.  Licensee shall not assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  Subject to the assignee’s compliance with the insurance requirements set forth herein, 
if any, Licensee shall furnish to the City a copy of any such assignment or transfer of any of 
Licensee’s rights in this Agreement, including the name, address, and contact person of the 
assignee, along with the date of assignment or transfer.  The assignment shall not be or become 
effective until approved in writing by the City Manager of the City. 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 



 A-6 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTED, this the        day of                  , 2014. 
 
 
  LICENSOR:  City of Leander 
 

      
By:      

     Name:       
     Title:   City Manager 
 
 

LICENSEE:    Reagan’s Overlook Homeowners Association, Inc. 
 
 
     By:      
      Joseph W. Straub, President 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the          day of                  , 2014, by 
____________, City Manager, City of Leander, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
                                                                
      Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the        day of                  , 2014, by Joseph 
W. Straub, President of Reagan’s Overlook Homeowners Association, Inc., a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said nonprofit corporation. 
 
                                                                
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
City of Leander 
Attn: City Secretary 
P. O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 







AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
Executive Summary 

 
April 15, 2014 

 
 
 
Subject: Consider Approval of the Lakewood Community Park Master Plan  
 
Background: In December we began the process of master planning 125-acre Lakewood 
Community Park Master with the assistance of Baker-Aicklin & Associates.  The park is located 
in the southeast area of the City and all the land is being dedicated as a requirement of the 
Parkland Dedication Ordinance by the Cold Springs, Hazlewood and Crystal Springs 
Residential Developments. 
 
Public meetings were held at the Library on January 9th, February 13th and March 13th and an 
online planning blog was also established to facilitate a community survey, disseminate 
information and receive public input (http://lakewoodcommunitypark.blogspot.com/).  Information 
relative to survey results and meeting notes can be viewed on the planning blog. 
 
On May 5th the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board endorsed the Plan and recommended 
forwarding it to the Council for consideration of approval. 
 
If approved, staff will then begin preparing an application to the Texas Parks & Wildlife 
Department for a $400,000 grant to construct the initial phase of improvements. Council 
authorization to submit the grant application will be requested prior to submission. The total 
estimated cost to construct park is approximately $5.5 million.    
 
Financial Consideration:  None at this time. 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully recommends Council approval of the Lakewood 
Community Park Master Plan, as presented. 
 
Attachments:  Park Master Plan, Plan Perspectives; and Opinion of Probable Cost  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://lakewoodcommunitypark.blogspot.com/


N

1

4

6

7 8

9
10

10

11

13
14 15 18

17

14

19

16

3

12

2

5

1. main entry
2. skate park
3. “birthday party” pavilions
4. parking lot (200 parking spots)
5. playground
6. restrooms/storage
7. splash pad
8. basketball/volleyball courts
9. water quality/filtration basin
10. pecan/walnut orchard
11. off leash dog park (big/little dogs)
12. amphitheater
13. pavilions
14. Blockhouse Creek Trail
15. fishing pier
16. kayak/canoe lanuch
17. nature area kiosk
18. kayak/canoe rental station
19. wildlife viewing area

Crystal Springs

Cold Springs

Hazlewood

Lakewood

Lake Lakewood
context

lakewood community park
preliminary final master plan may, 2014

leander, tx
scale: 1”=100’0’100’500’ 400’ 300’ 200’1,000’2,000’3,000’4,000’ baker-aicklen + associates

great lawn
11 acres | not lighted

future trail extension 
to 183A Tollway

Blockhouse Creek Trail

connection to 
Hazlewood HOA Park

to Cold Springs
to Cold Springsto Crystal Springs

future trail extension to 
Reagan/Parmer Boulevard

livery lagoon

la
ke

w
oo

d 
pa

rk
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

Grand Lake Parkway 



PROJECT: Leander Lakewood Park April 30, 2014
RE: Opinion of Probable Construction Costs

Item 
Number Description Units Unit Price Quantity Total Price

$9,000.00
1 Entry Signage LS $6,000.00 1 $6,000.00
2 Landscape/Irrigation Allowance LS $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00

$47,610.00
3 Subgrade Prep SY $2.00 2070 $4,140.00
4 Crushed Limestone Base (Est. 8" Course) SY $11.00 2070 $22,770.00
5 1.5" HMAC SY $10.00 2070 $20,700.00

$134,050.00
6 Subgrade Prep SY $2.00 4650 $9,300.00
7 Crushed Limestone Base (Est. 8" Course) SY $11.00 4650 $51,150.00
8 1.5" HMAC SY $10.00 4650 $46,500.00
9 Wheel Stops EA $50.00 50 $2,500.00

10 Stripping, Signs LS $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00
11 Median Landscape/Irrigation Allowance (10,800 ft2) LS $16,000.00 1 $16,000.00
12 Shade Trees (with Irrigation) EA $400.00 14 $5,600.00

$151,440.00
13 Subgrade Prep SY $2.00 5430 $10,860.00
14 Crushed Limestone Base (Est. 8" Course) SY $11.00 5430 $59,730.00
15 1.5" HMAC SY $10.00 5430 $54,300.00
16 Wheel Stops EA $50.00 55 $2,750.00
17 Stripping, Signs LS $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00
18 Median Landscape/Irrigation Allowance (9,700 ft2) LS $14,500.00 1 $14,500.00
19 Shade Trees (with Irrigation) EA $400.00 17 $6,800.00

$246,450.00
20 Turfgrass surface - Bermudagrass sprigs SF $0.08 465000 $37,200.00
21 Irrigation Allowance SF $0.45 465000 $209,250.00

$275,000.00
22 Concrete Bowls and Streetscape (12,300 ft2) SF $275,000.00 1 $275,000.00

$292,500.00
23 Surfacing (Engineered Wood Fiber) SF $1.00 37500 $37,500.00
24 Playground Equipment LS $250,000.00 1 $250,000.00
25 Landscape/Irrigation Allowance LS $5,000.00 1 $5,000.00

$335,000.00
26 Cool Deck Surfacing SF $7.00 15000 $105,000.00
27 Splash Pad Equipment & Water Systems/Pumps LS $230,000.00 1 $230,000.00

$70,000.00
28 Basketball Court (Slab, Surfacing and Equipment) LS $45,000.00 1 $45,000.00
29 Double Sand Volleyball Court (Perimeter edge, Sand and Equipment) LS $25,000.00 1 $25,000.00

$20,530.00
30 4' vinyl coated chainlink perimeter fence LF $13.00 950 $12,350.00
31 4' vinyl coated chainlink interior fence LF $13.00 260 $3,380.00
32 4' vinyl coated chainlink gate EA $250.00 2 $500.00
33 Dog Waste Bag Dispensers EA $325.00 4 $1,300.00
34 Benches EA $500.00 6 $3,000.00

$956,500.00
35 Walnut/Pecan Orchard EA $400.00 70 $28,000.00
36 Standard Pavilion/Shelter EA $32,000.00 7 $224,000.00
37 "Birthday Party" Pavilion (Structure, Piers, Slab and Stone Columns) EA $42,000.00 5 $210,000.00
38 Picnic Tables EA $900.00 50 $45,000.00
39 Benches EA $750.00 20 $15,000.00

GREAT LAWN

MISC. SITE AMENITIES

DOG PARK

PARK ENTRANCE

ROADWAY ENTRANCE

PARKING LOT #1 - WEST (90 sp.)

PARKING LOT #2 - EAST (110 sp.)

SKATE PARK

PLAYGROUND

SPLASH PAD

RECREATIONAL SITE AMENITIES



40 Nature Area Kiosk EA $2,000.00 1 $2,000.00
41 Trash Receptacles EA $300.00 20 $6,000.00
42 Amphitheater - Quarry Block Limestone Stage (15'x10'x2') LS $2,500.00 1 $2,500.00
43 Arch Backstops (30' wide vinyl black coating) EA $8,000.00 2 $16,000.00
44 Bike Racks EA $500.00 6 $3,000.00
45 Fishing Pier (500' length - 15' wide) LS $175,000.00 1 $175,000.00
46 Wayfinding/Trailhead Signage (10-15 signs) LS $5,000.00 1 $5,000.00
47 Restroom Facility (1500 ft2 - 3 men, 3 women, Storage) LS $225,000.00 1 $225,000.00

$949,530.00
48 Blockhouse Creek Trail (10' wide, 5" thick concrete) LF $50.00 7025 $351,250.00
49 Sidewalks (8' wide, 5" thick concrete walkways throughout park) LF $32.00 11950 $382,400.00
50 Sidewalks (10' wide, 6" thick for emergency maintenance access) LF $60.00 1050 $63,000.00
51 Sidewalk (8' wide, 5" thick concrete around Wildlife Viewing Area) LF $32.00 1680 $53,760.00
52 Decomposted Granite path (8' wide) LF $24.00 2250 $54,000.00
53 Nature Based Trail - Mulch (6' wide) LF $8.00 5640 $45,120.00

$171,840.00
54 Kayak/Canoe Launch (200' length - 15' wide) LS $75,000.00 1 $75,000.00
55 Concession/Rental Station with Storage LS $85,000.00 1 $85,000.00
56 Sand Loam for Livery Lagoon Beach (2200 SY, 6" thick) CY $32.00 370 $11,840.00

$731,890.00

57
Misc. Construction Allowance:  Unclassified Earthwork for all infrastructure; 
Temp. E/S controls, Clearing & Grubbing; Reveg., Wet & Dry Site Utilities, Site 
Lighting etc.

LS $731,890.00 1 $731,890.00

$4,391,340.00

58 Mobilization LS 5.0%
59 Construction Contingency LS 20.0%

$1,097,835.00

$5,489,175.00

Assumptions/Disclaimers:  

6) Projection of future construction costs should include a 10% annual increase at a minimum.

4)  Regulatory Review, Permitting and Fees are not included in this OPCC.

5) Horizontal utility adjustments/relocations/extensions/services for storm sewer, domestic water, sanitary sewer, gas, electric and communication utility 
lines to the site are not included in this OPCC.

2) Unit pricing is based on average cost statewide and does not account for any site specific determinates that would effect costs of construction (i.e.- 
unknown subsurface conditions, structural foundations/footing per local soil conditions, etc.)
3) Professional Design (PS&E), Bid and Construction Observation services are not included in this OPCC (i.e. - landscape architectural, civil, architectural, 
structural, MEP, geotechnical, surveying, etc.)

878,268.00
Subtotal Construction Costs

TOTAL

1) All Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC) represent the Consultant and their Sub-Consultant(s) best judgment as professionals familiar with 
the construction industry and current available unit pricing. Consultant/Sub-Consultant(s) do not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual Project 
Construction Costs will not vary from this opinion.  Quantities are estimates only and the actual amount of work and/or materials are contingent upon final 
existing conditions, survey and construction design of these improvements.

LIVERY LAGOON 

MISC. 

Subtotal Construction Costs

219,567.00

SIDEWALKS











AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Ordinance Case 14-OR-004:  Hold a public hearing and 

consider action on amending sections of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance regarding the screening requirements for lots located 
adjacent to major roadways.    

 
Background: Staff is proposing to amend the Composite Ordinance to require 

screening walls along homes when they are adjacent to collectors 
and to modify the required materials.   

 
Origination: Planning Department 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the amendment to the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance at the May 8, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis Summary of Proposed Amendments 
 2. Ordinance 
 3.  Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission May 08, 2014 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 05/09/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ORDINANCE CASE 14-OR-004 

ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS 
 
ARTICLE VI, SECTION 8. SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-FAMILY LOTS ABUTTING 
OR ADJACENT TO TOLLWAY, HIGHWAY, OR ARTERIAL ROADWAY  

SECTION 8:  SINGLE-FAMILY AND TWO-FAMILY LOTS ABUTTING OR ADJACENT 
TO TOLLWAY, HIGHWAY, OR MAJOR ARTERIAL, OR COLLECTOR ROADWAY  
 
For single-family and two-family lots (except in the SFR district) contained within a subdivision 
receiving approval for a preliminary plat and final plat or a short form plat after the effective date of 
this ordinance and abutting or adjacent to a tollway, highway,  or major arterial, or collector roadways, 
and San Gabriel Parkway as identified on the Leander Roadway Transportation Plan (specified 
roadway) or based on roadway design, direct driveway access to any single-family or two-family lot 
from such roadway shall be prohibited.   The following are also applicable: 
 
(a) For lots abutting tollway, highway, or arterial such specified roadways and facing (having 

frontage exclusively on) such roadway, the following shall be provided (see Figure P – following 
page): 
(1) A front parallel common access road at least twenty-two (22) feet in width (face of curb to 

face of curb) located on a thirty (30) foot wide public ROW (or private lot maintained by an 
association or other private authority and dedicated as a public access easement) shall be 
provided adjacent to the specified roadway.  Such street shall be designed in accordance 
with the Transportation Criteria Manual; however, no sidewalk is required on this street if 
there is a sidewalk on the specified roadway.  The access drive is required to have access to 
a street other than the specified roadway and such intersection is required to be located at 
least one-hundred feet from the intersection of another street.  Limited access points to the 
specified roadway may be approved by the Director of Planning provided such access points 
are no closer than three-hundred feet to the intersection of another street or common access 
drive.  The Director of Planning and the Fire Chief may approve sole access to a specified 
roadway if other access is not reasonably feasible, necessary turn-arounds are provided and 
such plan creates the most desirable residential layout.   

(2) The required front building setback shall be measured from the access road ROW or private 
lot / access drive and may be reduced by five feet from the standard front setback 
requirements.  If the access road is privately maintained on a private lot, the single-family or 
two-family lot(s) shall front on the private lot / access drive and such frontage shall be 
considered as public road frontage for purposes of the subdivision ordinance.   

(3) A landscape lot at least ten feet in width is required to be dedicated between the common 
access road and the specified roadway ROW and is required to be planted as follows: for 
every six hundred (600) square feet of landscape area, two (2) shade trees (two-inch caliper 
or larger) and four (4) shrubs (five gallon container size or larger) shall be planted and 
maintained.  Two ornamental trees per shade tree may be substituted for up to fifty percent 



Attachment # 1                 

 

(50%) of the shade trees if desired.  No fence is permitted within this landscape lot or 
parallel common access road unless it is a wrought iron, tubular metal or similar decorative 
fence and does not create a visibility obstruction.  This landscape lot may be dedicated as 
public ROW if the applicant provides for ongoing maintenance of the landscaping and the 
common access road is dedicated as public ROW. 

 
(b) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector such specified roadways and backing 

up to such roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser classification), the following 
shall be provided (see Figure Q – following pages):   
(1) A landscape lot is required between the lot and the specified roadway.  Such landscape lot is 

required to be at least ten (10) feet wide and is required to be planted as follows: for every 
six hundred (600) square feet of landscape area, two (2) shade trees (two-inch caliper or 
larger) and four (4) shrubs (five gallon container size or larger) shall be planted and 
maintained.  Two ornamental trees per shade tree may be substituted for up to fifty percent 
of the shade trees if desired.   

(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between the 
landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots.  The fence is required to be 
constructed of one or more of the following materials: textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. 
WoodCrete), brick, stone, cast stone, stucco, factory tinted (not painted) split-faced 
concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  In 
addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also 
permitted when the privacy fence is adjacent to collectors. All columns are required to 
have concrete footings.  The landscape lot is required to be maintained by a private 
association. 

 
(c) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector such specified roadways and having a 

side of the lot adjacent to such roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser 
classification), the following shall be provided (see Figure Q – previous page): 
(1) A landscape lot is required between the lot and the specified roadway.  Such landscape lot is 

required to be at least ten (10) feet wide and is required to be planted as follows: for every 
six hundred (600) square feet of landscape area, two (2) shade trees (two-inch caliper or 
larger) and four (4) shrubs (five gallon container size or larger) shall be planted and 
maintained.  Two ornamental trees per shade tree may be substituted for up to fifty percent 
(50%) of the shade trees if desired.   

(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line between the 
landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots from the rear lot line to a point even 
with the rear wall of the house at a minimum, but no further than to a point even with the 
front wall of the house.  Any fence closer to the front lot line than the front wall of the 
house shall not exceed three feet in height; however, such fence is not required.  Such 
fence is required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials: textured pre-
cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete), brick, stone, cast stone, stucco, factory tinted (not 
painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved by the 
Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete 
(e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the privacy fence is adjacent to collectors.  All 
columns are required to have concrete footings.  The landscape lot is required to be 
maintained by a private association. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

SINGLE-FAMILY & TWO-FAMILY  
LOTS FACING MAJOR ARTERIAL ROADWAY 

M
A

JO
R

 A
R

TE
R

IA
L 

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

30’ ROW 

10’ LANDSCAPED 
ROW OR LOT 

22’ COMMON 
ACCESS ROAD 

R
O

W
 

FIGURE P 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

M
A

JO
R

 A
R

TE
R

IA
L 

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 

SINGLE-FAMILY & TWO-FAMILY -LOTS BACKING UP TO  
MAJOR TOLLWAY, HIGHWAY, ARTERIAL, OR COLLECTOR ROADWAY 

R
O

W
 

10’ LANDSCAPED 
LOT WITH  

PRIVACY FENCE 

FIGURE Q 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS AMENDING 

SECTIONS OF ARTICLE 14.200, THE COMPOSITE ZONING 
ORDINANCE, REGULATING THE SCREENING REQUIREMENTS FOR 
LOTS LOCATED ADJACENT TO MAJOR ROADWAYS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, PROVIDING SAVINGS, EFFECTIVE DATE 
AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
amendments to Article 14.200, Leander Code of Ordinances (the “Composite Zoning Ordinance”), 
and forwarded its recommendation on the amendments to the City Council; and 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has considered the proposed amendments and 
finds that the amendments are reasonable and necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of 
the present and future residents of the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.  
 
Section 2. Amendment of Article VI, Section 8.  Article VI, Section 8 of the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance are hereby amended in its entirety as follows: 
 

Section 8:  Single-Family and Two-Family Lots Abutting or Adjacent to Tollway, 
Highway, Arterial, or Collector Roadway  
 
For single-family and two-family lots contained within a subdivision receiving approval for a 
preliminary plat and final plat or a short form plat after the effective date of this ordinance and 
abutting or adjacent to a tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways as identified on the 
Leander Transportation Plan or based on roadway design, direct driveway access to any 
single-family or two-family lot from such roadway shall be prohibited.   The following are 
also applicable: 
 
(a) For lots abutting tollway, highway, or arterial roadways and facing (having frontage 

exclusively on) such roadway, the following shall be provided (see Figure P – following 
page): 
(1) A front parallel common access road at least twenty-two (22) feet in width (face of 

curb to face of curb) located on a thirty (30) foot wide public ROW (or private lot 
maintained by an association or other private authority and dedicated as a public 
access easement) shall be provided adjacent to the specified roadway.  Such street 
shall be designed in accordance with the Transportation Criteria Manual; however, 
no sidewalk is required on this street if there is a sidewalk on the specified roadway.  
The access drive is required to have access to a street other than the specified 



 
 -2- 

roadway and such intersection is required to be located at least one-hundred feet 
from the intersection of another street.  Limited access points to the specified 
roadway may be approved by the Director of Planning provided such access points 
are no closer than three-hundred feet to the intersection of another street or common 
access drive.  The Director of Planning and the Fire Chief may approve sole access 
to a specified roadway if other access is not reasonably feasible, necessary turn-
arounds are provided and such plan creates the most desirable residential layout.   

(2) The required front building setback shall be measured from the access road ROW or 
private lot / access drive and may be reduced by five feet from the standard front 
setback requirements.  If the access road is privately maintained on a private lot, the 
single-family or two-family lot(s) shall front on the private lot / access drive and 
such frontage shall be considered as public road frontage for purposes of the 
subdivision ordinance.   

(3) A landscape lot at least ten feet in width is required to be dedicated between the 
common access road and the specified roadway ROW and is required to be planted 
as follows: for every six hundred (600) square feet of landscape area, two (2) shade 
trees (two-inch caliper or larger) and four (4) shrubs (five gallon container size or 
larger) shall be planted and maintained.  Two ornamental trees per shade tree may 
be substituted for up to fifty percent (50%) of the shade trees if desired.  No fence is 
permitted within this landscape lot or parallel common access road unless it is a 
wrought iron, tubular metal or similar decorative fence and does not create a 
visibility obstruction.  This landscape lot may be dedicated as public ROW if the 
applicant provides for ongoing maintenance of the landscaping and the common 
access road is dedicated as public ROW. 

 
(b) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways and backing up to 

such roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser classification), the 
following shall be provided (see Figure Q – following pages):   
(1) A landscape lot is required between the lot and the specified roadway.  Such 

landscape lot is required to be at least ten (10) feet wide and is required to be planted 
as follows: for every six hundred (600) square feet of landscape area, two (2) shade 
trees (two-inch caliper or larger) and four (4) shrubs (five gallon container size or 
larger) shall be planted and maintained.  Two ornamental trees per shade tree may 
be substituted for up to fifty percent of the shade trees if desired.   

(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line 
between the landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots.  The fence is 
required to be constructed of one or more of the following materials: brick, stone, 
cast stone, stucco, factory tinted (not painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, 
or other similar material approved by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the 
materials listed above, textured pre-cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also 
permitted when the privacy fence is adjacent to collectors. All columns are 
required to have concrete footings.  The landscape lot is required to be maintained 
by a private association. 

 



 
 -3- 

(c) For lots adjacent to tollway, highway, arterial, or collector roadways and having a side of 
the lot adjacent to such roadway (having frontage on another roadway of a lesser 
classification), the following shall be provided (see Figure Q – previous page): 
(1) A landscape lot is required between the lot and the specified roadway.  Such 

landscape lot is required to be at least ten (10) feet wide and is required to be planted 
as follows: for every six hundred (600) square feet of landscape area, two (2) shade 
trees (two-inch caliper or larger) and four (4) shrubs (five gallon container size or 
larger) shall be planted and maintained.  Two ornamental trees per shade tree may 
be substituted for up to fifty percent (50%) of the shade trees if desired.   

(2) A six-foot privacy fence is required to be constructed at the common lot line 
between the landscape lot and the single-family or two-family lots from the rear lot 
line to a point even with the rear wall of the house at a minimum, but no further than 
to a point even with the front wall of the house.  Any fence closer to the front lot 
line than the front wall of the house shall not exceed three feet in height; however, 
such fence is not required.  Such fence is required to be constructed of one or 
more of the following materials: brick, stone, cast stone, stucco, factory tinted 
(not painted) split-faced concrete masonry unit, or other similar material approved 
by the Director of Planning.  In addition to the materials listed above, textured 
pre-cast concrete (e.g. WoodCrete) is also permitted when the privacy fence is 
adjacent to collectors.  All columns are required to have concrete footings.  The 
landscape lot is required to be maintained by a private association. 

 
Section 3. Amendment to Figures P and Q.  Figures P and Q of the Composite Zoning 
Ordinance are hereby amended in their entirety to read as set forth in attachments entitled Figure P 
and Figure Q attached to this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4. Conflicting Ordinances.  Exhibit “A”, Article 14.200, Leander Code of Ordinances 
and of Ordinance No. 05-018-00 is amended as provided herein.  All ordinances or parts thereof 
conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein, are hereby 
amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this 
ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and provisions of this ordinance 
shall govern. 
 
Section 5. Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Leander are expressly saved 
as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting zoning within the City 
which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued 
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under 
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the courts. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
Charter. 
 
Section 7. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 



 
 -4- 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any 
such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall 
be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 8. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 
 PASSED AND FINALLY APPROVED on the 5th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 





AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-007: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a tract of land generally located on the north 
side of W. San Gabriel Pkwy approximately 400 ft west from the 
intersection of US 183 and W San Gabriel Pkwy; 28.0 acres more 
or less out of the AW0134 – Cochran, C. Survey; WCAD Parcel 
#R031694. Currently, the property is zoned PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) and the applicant is proposing an amendment to the 
PUD, Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Robert Wunsch on behalf of Waterstone Tylerville LP. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval at the May 8, 2014 meeting. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.  Letter of Intent 
 5. Ordinance 
 6. Minutes – Planning & Zoning Commission May 08, 2014 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 05/09/2014 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-007 

TYLERVILLE PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Waterstone Tylerville LP. 
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property located on the north side of W. San Gabriel Pkwy 

approximately 400 ft west from the intersection of US 183 and W San 
Gabriel Pkwy and includes approximately 28 acres. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH HC-4-C 
Interim SFR-1-B Undeveloped Property 

EAST PUD/TOD Existing Commercial & Residential Uses 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Proposed Oak Creek Subdivision 

WEST PUD/TOD Undeveloped Property located within the TOD owned by  
Hill Country Bible Church 

        

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

An Ordinance of the City of Leander established a Planned Unit Development District (PUD) 
called the Leander TOD. This PUD defined a form-based code and a Transect Map (or 
regulating plan) as the community plan and PUD plan for the geographic area set for in the 
ordinance.   The TOD is an area where a mixed-use, pedestrian friendly requirement will prevail 
over the typical land-use oriented plan; where all commercial and residential land-uses may be 
developed by right; where streets are designed to slow traffic rather than encourage it; where 
residents can find neighborhood services and goods within a ten-minute walk and where there is 
a variety of housing types and price ranges. 

 
T3 TRANSECT – SUB-URBAN ZONE 

The Sub-Urban Zone, though similar to conventional suburban single-family house areas, differs 
by its street connectivity and by allowing home occupations.  It is typically adjacent to other urban 
T-Zones.  This zone is naturalistic in its planting.  Blocks may be large and the roads irregular to 
accommodate site conditions. 
 

T4 TRANSECT – NEIGHBORHOOD GENERAL ZONE: 
The Neighborhood General Zone has a denser, primarily residential urban fabric.  Mixed use 
is confined to certain corner locations.  This Zone has a wide range of building types.  Single, 
sideyard, and row houses are set close to frontages.  Streets typically define medium-sized 
blocks. 
 

CONVENTIONAL ZONE: 
The Conventional Zone designation allows for the property to be developed pursuant to the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and other development ordinances 
with the addition of specific architectural standards. 

 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 
 

  



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the TOD/PUD (Transit Oriented 
Development/Planned Unit Development) district in to order to remove the property T3 and T4 
transect zones and place the property within the Conventional Zone.  They are also requesting a 
minimum density of six units per acre. 
 
If this request is approved, the next step in the process would be for the applicant to submit a 
PUD zoning application that includes a Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan.  This plan 
would designate the proposed Composite Zoning districts and any other development standards 
that they will follow for the development of the project.   Currently, the T4 Transect requires a 
minimum residential density of 12 units per acre and the T3 Transect requires a minimum 
residential density of 4 units per acre.  The adjacent property is located within the T5 
Neighborhood Center Zone which requires a higher density of a minimum of 20 units per acre. 
 
The proposed SmartCode update includes this lot in the Conventional Development Sector which 
is similar to the Conventional District. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested TOD/PUD amendment.  The proposed land use is 
compatible with the neighboring properties.  This request conforms to the proposed SmartCode 
update. 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

5D

4C

4C

4C

4C US 18
3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

183A TOLL RD FR SB

OA
K 

GR
OV

E R
D

CR 276

183A TOLL RD FR NB

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

US
 18

3 S
B US

 18
3 N

B

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-007
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Tylerville PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



US
 18

3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

CR 276

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-007 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Tylerville PUD



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4







Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR SEVERAL PARCELS OF 
LAND BY CREATING THE TYLERVILLE PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 

 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Tylerville Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No.05-026, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Property Rezoned.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creation of the 
Tylerville PUD, which are herein referred to as the “Property,” generally located on the north side 
of West San Gabriel Pkwy to the west of the intersection of US 183 and West San Gabriel Pkwy, 
and more particularly described as follows:  28.0 acres out of the Charles Cochran League, 
Abstract Number 134, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly 
shown and described in Exhibits “A” and “B”; and identified by tax identification number 
R031694.  The Property is zoned to the planned unit development district known as the 
Tylerville PUD within the TODD.  The Property shall not be developed until a Conceptula Site 
Layout and Land Use Plan is submitted.   
 
Section 4. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5.Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 5th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 2

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & RIDE
RAIL STATION

5D

4C

4C

4C

4C US 18
3

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

183A TOLL RD FR SB

OA
K 

GR
OV

E R
D

CR 276

183A TOLL RD FR NB

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

ME
L M

AT
HI

S A
VE

US
 18

3 S
B US

 18
3 N

B

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 400
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-007
Tylerville PUD

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation







AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  Second reading of an ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas, annexing 
304.13 acres of land, more or less, located in Williamson County, Texas and including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way; approving a service plan for the annexed area; 
making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for 
open meetings and other related matters. 
  
Background:  The Resolution setting the two public hearings for March 27, 2014 and April 3, 
2014 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2014.    The first and second public 
hearings were conducted as scheduled.  The first reading of the ordinance was approved on May 
1, 2014.  This is the second and final reading of the ordinance. This is an involuntary annexation. 
 
Staff is recommending an amendment to the annexation ordinance to allow for new residential 
building permits to be issued for up to 180 days from the date of the annexation ordinance 
without having to meet the City's fire flow requirements as stipulated in the fire code.  This will 
allow projects that are currently being planned to move forward prior to the City completing the 
water system improvements in the neighborhood. 
     
Origination:  City of Leander 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends that Council approve the second reading of the 
ordinance.   
 
Attachments:  

1. Annexation Ordinance 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 5/7/14 



 ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ANNEXING 

304.13 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCLUDING THE ABUTTING STREETS, 
ROADWAYS, AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY; APPROVING A SERVICE PLAN 
FOR THE ANNEXED AREA; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), is a home rule municipality 
authorized by State law and the City's Charter to annex territory lying adjacent and contiguous to 
the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council, in compliance with §43.021, Tex. Local Gov't Code, 
instituted proceedings for the annexation of certain property more particularly described herein (the 
“subject property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property hereby annexed is adjacent and contiguous to the present 
City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property, being in excess of 1,000 feet in width, is adjacent to the 
corporate limits of the City and the boundaries of the city limits surround and are contiguous to the 
subject property on all sides, as shown in the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with §43.035, Tex. Local Gov't Code, the City extended a 
written offer to enter a development agreement with applicable landowner(s); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council heard arguments with respect to such annexation and has 
decided to annex the area;  
 
 WHEREAS, two separate public hearings were conducted prior to consideration of this 
Ordinance in accordance with § 43.063, Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, the hearings were conducted and held not more than forty (40) nor less than 
twenty (20) days prior to the institution of annexation proceedings; 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearings was published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City and the territory proposed to be annexed not more than twenty (20) nor less 
than ten (10) days prior to the public hearings; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City intends to provide services to the subject property to be annexed 
according to the Service Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That all of the above premises and findings of fact are found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 SECTION 2. That the following described property, including the abutting streets, 
roadways and rights-of-way, is hereby annexed into the corporate limits of the City of Leander: 
 

   Ridgmar Landing Area.   All that certain area of land containing 304.13 
acres, more or less, located in Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described and shown in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
 SECTION 3.  In the event of conflict between the description of the subject property in this 
Ordinance and the map attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, Exhibit “A” shall control. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That the Service Plan submitted herewith is hereby approved as part of this 
Ordinance, made a part hereof and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That the future owners and inhabitants of the subject property shall be 
entitled to all of the rights and privileges of the City as set forth in the Service Plan attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B”, and are further bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in full 
force and effect and all those which may be hereafter adopted. 
 
 SECTION 6.  That the official map and boundaries of the City, heretofore adopted and 
amended, be and hereby are amended so as to include the subject property as part of the City of 
Leander. 
 
 SECTION 7.  That the subject property shall be temporarily zoned District “SFR-1-B” as 
provided in the City Zoning Ordinance, as amended, until permanent zoning is established 
therefore. 
 
 SECTION 8.   That if any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 SECTION 9.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 SECTION 10.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, Tex. 
Gov't. Code. 
 
 



 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this ____ day of _________, 2014. 
 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of ___________, 2014. 
     
 

ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

 

______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 



Exhibit “A” 
 

             Property Description: Map 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) instituted and completed annexation 
proceedings for tracts of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
properties”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties are not included in the municipal annexation plan and 
are exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject properties will be provided municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within the City limits and capital 
improvements necessary to offer such municipal services on the same terms and conditions as other 
similarly situated properties within the City and in accordance with City policies, regulations, and 
ordinances;  
 
 WHEREAS, upgrades to the existing water system supplying the subject properties will be 
necessary in order to provide fire flows in accordance with City standards as established by the 
2009 International Fire Code, Appendix B and Section 507;  
 
 WHEREAS, for a period of up to 180 days from the approval of the annexation of the 
subject properties, the City, with the approval of the fire chief, shall authorize the issuance of 
residential building permits to areas located within the subject properties without regard for the 
requirement of providing fire flows in accordance with City standards and those established by the 
2009 International Fire Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject properties into the City.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services shall be provided to the subject properties on 
the effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  The subject properties are located within the City’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction and are more particularly described in the Ordinance to which this 
service plan is attached.  Pursuant to this Plan, the following services shall be provided 
immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 



 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police 
services now being offered to the citizens of the City. 

 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and 

the volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the regulatory jurisdiction of the City shall be extended 

to include the annexed area, and all property therein shall be subject to the City’s police 
power regulations as set forth in duly adopted ordinances; provided that the use of all 
property therein shall be grandfathered to the extent provided by state law.  The subject 
properties shall be temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject 
properties upon request of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and 
the City Council will consider rezoning the subject properties at future times in response to 
requests submitted by the landowners or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Depending on the plans for development or 
redevelopment of the subject properties, the following municipal services will be provided on a 
schedule and at increasing levels of service as requested in compliance with applicable City 
ordinances, rules and regulations for providing such services:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 



service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the 
utility in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are 
located, in accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the 
costs of line extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service 
to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines 
within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided 
by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied 
to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, 
regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted 
and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance 
policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the 
same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances 
of the City in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and 
request for service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of 
the annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of 

wastewater service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or 
applicable portions thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in 
whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time 
to time for the extension of wastewater service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility 
system, the subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay 
the costs of line extension and construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater 
service to the subject properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the 
wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater 
service will be provided by the City utility department on the same terms, conditions and 
requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject 
to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The 
wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual 
policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be installed and extended upon 
request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the 
City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the 
costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system that is in use on the 
effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable rules and 



regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property owner 
requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance, as appropriate, of existing public streets and rights-of-way that are 

within the maintenance jurisdiction of the City and other streets that are hereafter 
constructed and finally accepted by the City within the maintenance jurisdiction of the 
City as follows: 
 

 (i) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.;  

 
 (ii)  Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City; 
 
 (iii) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need therefore is 
determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
 (iv) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings and 

other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate study and 
traffic standards; and 

 
 (v) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City. 
 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  Water and wastewater facilities that are 
identified in the Capital Improvement Plan, as and when funded pursuant to such Plan.  Upon 
development of the subject properties or redevelopment, the landowners will be responsible for the 
development costs the same as a developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect 
at the time of development or redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at 
this time to service the subject properties the same as similarly situated properties.   
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal descriptions of the subject properties are as set forth in 
exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is attached. 
 
 



RM 2243

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

Ridgmar Landing Area
304.13 Ac.

County Line
Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ

Proposed Annexation Areas
Ridgmar Landing Area

Ë
0 500 1,000

Feet



AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
May 15, 2014 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #14-Z-001: Second reading and consider action on the 

rezoning of two parcels of land located along Ronald Reagan 
Boulevard on the east side, south of High Lonesome Trail and north 
of CR 264 for 5.52 acres more or less. Parcels #R473782 and 
R032342. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single-
Family Rural) and SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban).  The property 
is proposed to be zoned GC-3-B (General Commercial), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.   

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC on behalf of Phillip C. Joseph. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial) per the staff recommendation at the April 24, 2014 
meeting.  The City Council unanimously approved the Planning & 
Zoning Commission recommendation of LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial) at the May 1, 2014 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map  
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4.   Letter of Intent 
 5.  Ordinance 
  
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, AICP  
 Development Services Director 05/09/2014 



Attachment # 1                 

 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 

Spenn Tract 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Philip Joseph 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFS-2-B (Single-Family Suburban)  
 Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) – pending annexation 
    
Proposed Zoning: GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
 
Size and Location: The property is located at 17740 and 17720 Ronald W. Reagan Blvd and 

is approximately 5.521 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH  SFR-2-B Under Construction Single-Family Neighborhood (Reagan’s 
Overlook) 

EAST OCL Developed Single Family Home 

SOUTH Interim SFS-2-B Developed Single Family Home 

WEST GC-3-C Non-Developed Commercial Property (proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

 
USE COMPONENT: 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
SITE COMPONENT: 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 



Attachment # 1                 

 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, LI and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS: 

TYPE B 
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% overall; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 

The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Provide Opportunities for coordinated, well-planned growth and development that are 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone the property from Interim SFS-2-B (Single Family 
Suburban) district and Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-3-B (General Commercial) 
district.  Half of this property is currently subject to a voluntary annexation.  This process will 
run concurrently with the rezoning request.  The property is located at the edge of the Town 
Center node, which is centered at the intersection of Hero Way and Ronald W. Reagan Blvd. The 
Town Center node encourages a mix of uses including apartments, major commercial and retail, 
and office uses. 
 
Immediately north of this property is the single family Reagan’s Overlook subdivision which is 
currently under construction, and immediately to the south and east of this property are presently 



Attachment # 1                 

 

developed single family homes. West of the property, on the adjacent side of Ronald W. Reagan 
Blvd is a non-developed GC-3-C zoned district that is currently part of the proposed Palmera 
Ridge PUD. 
 
The intent statements of the GC component speaks to allowing for small and large scale 
commercial and retail development uses located in high traffic areas.  It also notes that access 
should be provided through an arterial street, and that the heaviest concentration of this 
component should be located at intersections of arterial streets.  
 
The proposed Type 3 site component associated with the GC use component permits the use of 
the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and storage or accessory 
buildings.   Permitted outdoor uses include: 
 Outdoor Display (limited 30% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Storage (limited 20% of the gross floor area of the primary structure) 
 Outdoor Fuel Sales 
 Overhead Commercial Doors  
 Drive-Through Lanes (also permitted in Type 2) 

 
The proposed Type B architectural component requires that 85% of the street facing walls are 
masonry and the 50% of the overall structure is masonry.   
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Staff recommends denial of the requested GC-3-B (General Commercial) and approval of LC-2-
B (Local Commercial) district.  The LC use component permits the development of small scale 
commercial, retail, personal services and office uses.  The intent is for this use component to be 
located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday needs of the 
nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  In addition, the 
Type 2 site component limits the amount of outdoor activity and is an appropriate use located 
next to residential neighborhoods.  



REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA RIDGE 2B

2B

2B

CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

AIRPO
RT D

R

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200 400
Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-001
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Spenn Tract

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC
SFL

SFT
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO
LC 

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë 0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property

City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-001 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Spenn Tract

S WEST DR



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 4



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO LC-2-B 
(LOCAL COMMERCIAL); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcels of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 5.52 acres, more or less, 
located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, 
legally described as 5.52 acres more or less out of the A. Smith Survey AW0559; more 
particularly described in Document Number 2013103652 of the Official Public Records of 
Williamson County, Texas, and identified by tax identification number R473782 and R032342.   
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to LC-2-B (Local 
Commercial). 
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 1st day of May, 2014. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 15th day of May, 2014. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



2B

2B

CR 264

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

VISTA HEIGHTS DR

HI
GH

 LO
NE

SO
ME

 TR
L

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

EXHIBIT A
Zoning Case
14-Z-001
Spenn Tract

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Future Annexation Per DA
Involuntary Annexation
Voluntary Annexation



AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration and Action on an Ordinance Authorizing 
Redemption of All of the 2016 Maturity of The City Of Leander, Texas General 
Obligation And Refunding Bonds, Series 2007; And Authorizing And Approving Other 
Matters Related Thereto.  
 
Background:  On April 19, 2012, City Council approved refunding bonds in the amount 
of $19,165,000 which refinanced all but $1,995,000 of the outstanding bonds and tax 
certificates of obligation that were issued in 2007 to achieve significant interest rate 
savings.  However, in order to maximize savings and further smooth out the City’s debt 
curve which peaks in 2015, the City intentionally did not refinance the $1,995,000 that 
was scheduled to mature in 2016 and 2017.  Instead, the refinancing strategy developed 
by First Southwest and City staff contemplated that the City would “call” or payoff these 
obligations early over three years – in 2012, 2013, and 2014 as part of the regular Debt 
Service budget which is funded by the interest & sinking fund tax rate.  This is the final 
payment. 
  
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  Budgeted Debt Service Current Revenue (80-01-9610 - 
$650,000) 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 







































AGENDA ITEM # 16 
 

 

Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

Council Agenda Subject:  An Ordinance Denying An Increase In Rates Requested By Atmos 
Energy Corporation – Midtex Division, Submitted On Or About February 28, 2014 Under The 
Rate Review Mechanism. 

 
Background: On February 28, 2014, Atmos initiated a ratemaking proceeding with cities in the 
coalition known as the Atmos Texas Municipalities (ATM) by submitting an application to 
increase its revenue by about $45.6 million and to change its rates to collect that increase in 
revenue.  An increase of $45.6 million represents an increase of about 9.2% in annual base-rate 
revenue.  The increase for an average customer is as follows: 
 

Residential Customer:   $2.02/month (9.96%) in base rates. 
Commercial Customer:    $2.16/month (10.16%) in base rates. 
Industrial/Transportation Customer:  $53.65/month (10.29 %) in base rates.   

 
ATM retained the law firm of Herrera & Boyle, PLLC (H&B) as Special Counsel and the 
consulting firm of Utilitech, Inc. (Utilitech) to review Atmos’ filing.  After an extensive review 
of Atmos’ request to increase its revenue and change its rates, on about April 10, 2014, ATM’s 
Special Counsel and consultants concluded Atmos merited an increase of no more than about 
$26.6 million.  Special Counsel’s and the consultants’ assessment was preliminary and excluded 
additional downward adjustments to Atmos’ request that are not included in the $26.6 million 
amount because of the amount of time to review Atmos’ request and because of then-outstanding 
responses to requests for information submitted to Atmos by ATM’s Special Counsel. 
 
Atmos has the right to appeal the ATM cities’ decisions to the Texas Railroad Commission. 
 
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  n/a 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance; correspondence 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



1 of 3 

AGENDA INFORMATION SHEET 
AGENDA ITEM NO. _____________________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATMOS TEXAS MUNICIPALITIES 
 
The City is a member of the Atmos Texas Municipalities (ATM).  The ATM group was 
organized by a number of municipalities served by Atmos and has been represented by 
the law firm of Herrera & Boyle, PLLC (through Mr. Alfred R. Herrera).  ATM also 
retained the services of a consulting firm, Utilitech, Inc. (Mr. Mike Brosch and Mr. Steve 
Carver) to assist in reviewing an application submitted by the Atmos Energy-Mid-Tex 
Division (Atmos) that seeks to increase its rates and change its rates.  Both Herrera & 
Boyle, PLLC and Utilitech, Inc. have participated in prior rate cases involving Atmos and 
have extensive knowledge and experience in rate matters affecting Atmos’ rates, 
operations, and services. 
 
HISTORY OF PRIOR RATE INCREASES 
 
General Rate Case (Approved December 2012) 
 
In January 2012, Atmos sought an increase of about $49.1 million.  Ultimately, the ATM 
cities and Atmos were not able to reach agreement on an increase and Atmos filed an 
appeal to the Railroad Commission of Texas.  The Railroad Commission approved an 
increase of about $24.1 million, representing an increase in revenue of about 7% 
 
Prior Increase Under the RRM (July 2013) 
 
In the summer of 2013, Atmos and ATM entered into an agreement that approved a 
revised Rate Review Mechanism (RRM).  The RRM approved in the Summer of 2013 is 
the third iteration of that rate-setting mechanism.  
 
Less than a year ago, on or around July 15, 2013, Atmos submitted a request to increase 
rates under the RRM.  Atmos requested an increase in rates on a system-wide basis of 
$22.7 million, which is an increase of about 5%.  Following a series of settlement 
negotiations between Atmos’ experts and ATM’s experts, Atmos agreed to an increase of 
$16.6 million, an increase in revenue of about 3.7%. 
 
 
 

DENIAL OF ATMOS ENERGY CORPORATION, MID-TEX DIVISION’S 
(ATMOS) REQUEST TO INCREASE ITS REVENUE AND CHANGE ITS 
RATES UNDER THE RATE REVIEW MECHANISM 



2 of 3 

RATE REVIEW MECHANISM 
 
On February 28, 2014, Atmos initiated a ratemaking proceeding with cities in the 
coalition known as the Atmos Texas Municipalities (ATM) by submitting an application 
to increase its revenue by about $45.6 million and to change its rates to collect that 
increase in revenue.  An increase of $45.6 million represents an increase of about 9.2% in 
annual base-rate revenue.  The increase for an average customer is as follows: 
 

Residential Customer:   $2.02/month (9.96%) in base rates. 
Commercial Customer:    $2.16/month (10.16%) in base rates. 
Industrial/Transportation Customer:  $53.65/month (10.29 %) in base rates.   

 
ATM retained the law firm of Herrera & Boyle, PLLC (H&B) as Special Counsel and the 
consulting firm of Utilitech, Inc. (Utilitech) to review Atmos’ filing.  After an extensive 
review of Atmos’ request to increase its revenue and change its rates, on about April 10, 
2014, ATM’s Special Counsel and consultants concluded Atmos merited an increase of 
no more than about $26.6 million.  Special Counsel’s and the consultants’ assessment 
was preliminary and excluded additional downward adjustments to Atmos’ request that 
are not included in the $26.6 million amount because of the amount of time to review 
Atmos’ request and because of then-outstanding responses to requests for information 
submitted to Atmos by ATM’s Special Counsel. 
 
The basis for ATM’s consultants’ preliminary assessment that Atmos warranted at most 
an increase of $26.6 million is based on numerous exclusions of costs or rejection of 
accounting practices for which Atmos failed to carry its burden of proof that such costs or 
practices were reasonable and consistent with sound ratemaking and regulatory 
principles.  Examples of these items included Atmos’ request with regard to: 
 

• An increase in Uncollectible Revenue related to implementation of a new billing 
system and unexplained cost overruns associated with implementation of the new 
billing system 

• An increase in promotional advertising expenses unrelated to the conservation of 
energy and more related to promoting Atmos’ corporate image 

• Atmos’ Incentive Compensation program for its executives and upper 
management 

• Inclusion in its capital accounts of items the Railroad Commission had in prior 
orders excluded from Atmos’ cost of service 

• Atmos’ use of projected costs related to medical and dental benefits  
• Atmos’ deferred accounting treatment of certain pension benefits 
• The amount of Cash Working Capital Atmos proposed to recover from customers 
• Atmos’ treatment of certain federal income tax expenses including its ratemaking 

treatment of accumulated deferred income tax (ADIT) reserves 
• Atmos’ calculation of accounting balances related to certain regulatory assets 

allowed under the Railroad Commission’s rules 
 



3 of 3 

This is not intended to be nor is it an exhaustive list of the issues identified by ATM’s 
rate experts.  It is provided to show some of the areas in Atmos’ application to change 
rates in which ATM’s Special Counsel and rate experts found deficiencies in Atmos’ 
request.  

 
ATM’s Special Counsel and consultants engaged in good-faith negotiations with Atmos 
to attempt to reach a settlement of Atmos’ proposed increase, but those negotiations 
failed to produce an agreement. 
 
At this juncture, the ATM cities’ options are as follows: 
 

Option 1.  To deny Atmos’ requested increase and approve no increase; 
  
Option 2.  To deny Atmos’ requested increase and approve an increase of no 

more than $26.6 million, based on ATM’s consultants’ preliminary 
report; or 

  
Option 3.  To take no action and allow Atmos’ proposed increase of $45.6 

million and its related rates to go into effect. 
  
Note that under Option 1 and Option 2, Atmos has the right to appeal the ATM cities’ 
decisions to the Railroad Commission of Texas and pending such an appeal has the right 
to implement its proposed increase of $45.6 million effective June 1, 2014, subject to 
refund if the Commission’s review later finds a lower amount is appropriate.   Atmos has 
notified ATM’s Special Counsel of Atmos’ intent to file an appeal of the City’s decision 
to deny its requested increase. 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
ATM’s experts’ preliminary report suggests Atmos does not warrant an increase of $45.6 
million.  Given that the ATM cities and Atmos were not able to reach agreement on an 
amount by which to increase Atmos’ annual revenue and that ATM’s Special Counsel 
and rate experts believe a much lower increase is in order, and in light of the significant 
increases Atmos has obtained in the recent past, ATM’s Special Counsel recommends 
that the City deny Atmos’ proposed increase in revenue and changes in rates.  
 
Atmos will appeal the City’s decision denying its requested increase and changes in rates 
to the Railroad Commission.  ATM’s Special Counsel recommends that the City 
participate in Atmos’ appeal to the Railroad Commission and in any appeals to the courts 
of the Railroad Commission’s decision. 
 
The attached Resolution also directs Atmos to reimburse ATM’s rate-case expenses 
incurred to date and to reimburse on a monthly basis, ATM’s rate-case expenses for any 
and all related appeals.   
 
The City should take action as soon as possible but no later than May 31, 2014.   



  

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS DENYING AN 
INCREASE IN RATES REQUESTED BY ATMOS ENERGY 
CORPORATION – MIDTEX DIVISION, SUBMITTED ON OR ABOUT 
FEBRUARY 28, 2014 UNDER THE RATE REVIEW MECHANISM; 
FINDING ATMOS’ REQUEST UNREASONABLE; DIRECTING ATMOS 
ENERGY TO REIMBURSE THE CITY’S RATE-CASE EXPENSES; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN APPEALS ATMOS 
MAY TAKE DENYING ITS REQUESTED INCREASE; REQUIRING 
DELIVERY OF THE ORDINANCE TO THE COMPANY AND THE 
CITY’S SPECIAL COUNSEL; FINDING THAT THE MEETING 
COMPLIED WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT; DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND 
PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT.   
 
WHEREAS, Atmos Energy Corporation-MidTex Division ("Atmos" or "Company") 

filed a request with the City of Leander, Texas (“City”) on or about February 28, 2014, thereby 

initiating a ratemaking proceeding to increase its revenue and change its rates within the 

corporate limits of the City, and specifically to increase its system-wide, annual revenue 

requirement by approximately $45.7 million, which is an increase in base rates exclusive of the 

cost of gas of approximately 9.2%; and 

WHEREAS, the City is a regulatory authority under Utilities Code § 103.001 (more 

commonly referred to as the Gas Utility Regulatory Act (“GURA”)) and has exclusive original 

jurisdiction over Atmos’ rates, operations, and services within the City; and 

WHEREAS, Section 103.021 of GURA authorizes the City to obtain information from 

Atmos as necessary to make a determination of the basis for the Atmos’ proposed increase in 

rates in the City; and 

WHEREAS, Section 103.022 of GURA provides that Atmos shall reimburse the City its 

reasonable cost of engaging personnel to assist it in reviewing Atmos’ application; and 

WHEREAS, the City has participated in prior cases regarding Atmos as part of a 

coalition of cities known as the Atmos Texas Municipalities (“ATM”); and 



  

 2 

WHEREAS, Atmos submitted its application to increase rates under the Rate Review 

Mechanism (“RRM”); and 

WHEREAS, Special Counsel and experts representing ATM have analyzed the data 

furnished by Atmos, sought and obtained additional data, and have interviewed Atmos’ 

management regarding Atmos’ request to increase rates; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Special Counsel and rate experts concluded that Atmos’ request 

to increase rates by $45.7 million is unreasonably high; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Special Counsel and rate experts’ conclusion that Atmos’ request 

to increase rates by $45.7 million is unreasonably high is based on numerous elements in Atmos’ 

request that are inconsistent with sound rate-setting and regulatory principles; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Special Counsel and rate experts participated in discussions with 

Atmos to attempt to resolve Atmos’ proposed change in rates and increase in revenue through 

negotiations but were unable to reach agreement; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that Atmos will appeal the City’s denial of its request to 

increase rates to the Railroad Commission of Texas and possibly to the courts, thus requiring the 

continued assistance of Special Counsel and rate experts in those proceedings. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

LEANDER, TEXAS THAT: 

Section 1.  The findings set forth in this Ordinance are hereby in all things approved. 

Section 2.  Atmos Energy Corporation-MidTex Division’s request to change its rates and 

to increase its revenue by approximately $45.7 million is hereby DENIED.   

Section 3. Pursuant to Utilities Code § 103.022 and under the terms of the Rate Review 

Mechanism, Atmos is hereby directed to reimburse the City’s rate case expenses, as participants 

in the coalition of cities known as the Atmos Texas Municipalities, for engaging counsel, rate 

consultants, and other personnel in assisting the City in its investigation of Atmos’ proposed 

increase in rates, and is further directed to reimburse the City’s rate case expenses on a monthly 



  

 3 

basis for the City’s participation in any appeal Atmos seeks of the City’s denial of its request to 

increase rates. 

Section 4.  This Ordinance supersedes any Resolution or Ordinance previously adopted 

by the City Council to the extent such previously adopted Resolution or Ordinance is 

inconsistent with this Ordinance. 

Section 5.  The meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in all things 

conducted in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 

551. 

Section 6.  If any one or more sections or clauses of this Ordinance is judged to be 

unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining 

provisions of this Ordinance and the remaining provisions of the Ordinance shall be interpreted 

as if the offending section or clause never existed. 

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage. 

Section 8.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be sent to Atmos Energy-Mid-Tex Division, 

care of Christopher Felan, Vice President of Rates and Regulatory Affairs, Atmos Energy 

Corporation, 5420 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas 75240, and to Special Counsel, Mr. 

Alfred R. Herrera, Herrera & Boyle, PLLC, 816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1250, Austin, Texas 

78701. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________ day of ___________________, 2014. 

 

      ____________________________________ 
      Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 

 

Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Interlocal Agreement for 183A and U.S. 
Highway 183 Intersection Improvements between the Central Texas Regional Mobility 
Authority and the City of Leander  
 
Background:   The project consists of improvements to the intersection of 183A and 
U.S. Highway 183 and to the initial entryway from 183A/183 into the Developer’s 
Property, including both northbound and southbound turn-arounds and traffic signals on 
the northbound 183A frontage road and the southbound 183A frontage road. The 
Mobility Authority agrees to manage the design, contract procurement, and construction 
of the Project through its staff and vendors under contract with the Mobility Authority.  
The parties have agreed that it would be to their mutual benefit for the Mobility Authority 
to design and construct the project with the City paying a portion of the design and 
construction costs for the Project by paying to the Mobility Authority a single payment of 
$1,250,000 as its sole contribution towards the total cost of developing and completing 
the 183A/183 Project. 
  
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Single payment of $1,250,000 towards the total cost of 
developing and completing the project, GL # TBD 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval of the Interlocal Agreement. 
 
Attachments:   Interlocal Agreement for 183A and U.S. Highway 183 Intersection 
Improvements 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



 

 

Page 1 of 4 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  

 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is effective as of May 
_______, 2014, and is between the CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
(the “Mobility Authority”) and the CITY OF LEANDER (the “City”), political subdivisions of 
the State of Texas (collectively, the “Parties”). 

WITNESSETH: 
 WHEREAS, the Mobility Authority is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 

the request of Travis and Williamson Counties and operating pursuant to Chapter 370 of the 
Texas Transportation Code (the “RMA Act”) and 43 TEX. ADMIN. CODE §§ 26.1 et seq. (the 
“RMA Rules”); and  

 WHEREAS, the City is a home rule city and municipal corporation; and 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code provides that any one or more 
public agencies may contract with each other for the performance of governmental functions or 
services in which the contracting parties are mutually interested; and 

WHEREAS, Section 370.033 of the RMA Act provides that a regional mobility 
authority may enter into contracts or agreements with another governmental entity; and 

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a Development and Reimbursement Agreement 
(the “Development Agreement”) with Crescent Leander, TX, LLC (the “Developer”) and 
Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Leander, Texas (the “Zone”) concerning the 
development of approximately 491 acres owned by the Developer and located in the vicinity of 
the intersection of 183A and U.S. Highway 183 (the “Developer’s Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has agreed in the Development Agreement to pay 
$1,500,000 towards the design and construction of the Project ($250,000 of which is credited in 
the Development Agreement based on prior expenditures by Developer, leaving a $1,250,000 
contribution remaining to be paid by Developer); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed that it would be to their mutual benefit for the 
Mobility Authority to design and construct the Project with the City paying a portion of the 
design and construction costs for the Project by paying to the Mobility Authority the remaining 
$1,250,000 contribution from the Developer to the City pursuant to the Development Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:  

1. Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes 
and are found by the Parties to be true and correct. The Parties have further found and 
determined that each Party has authorized and approved the Agreement by resolution or order 
adopted by its respective governing body, and that this Agreement will be in full force and effect 
when approved by each Party. 

2. 183A/183 Intersection Improvements. The Project consists of improvements to the 
intersection of 183A and U.S. Highway 183 and to the initial entryway from 183A/183 into the 
Developer’s Property, including both northbound and southbound turn-arounds and traffic 



 

 

Page 2 of 4 

signals on the northbound 183A frontage road and the southbound 183A frontage road, 
consistent with the definitions for “183A/183 Intersection” and “Initial Entryway” set forth in 
Sections 3.4(a) and 3.4(b), respectively, of the Development Agreement. The Mobility Authority 
agrees to manage the design, contract procurement, and construction of the Project through its 
staff and vendors under contract with the Mobility Authority. 

3. Payment Obligation of the City. The City agrees to make a single payment of $1,250,000 
to the Mobility Authority as its sole contribution towards the total cost of developing and 
completing the Project (the “Project Costs”).  

4. Timing of Payment. No later than 90 days before the date the Mobility Authority 
anticipates publishing its notice of bid solicitation for the construction contract for the Project 
(the “90 Day Notice”), the Mobility Authority shall provide written notice to the City that it 
anticipates publishing that notice of bid solicitation. No later than five business days after the 90 
Day Notice is provided to the City, the City, through its City Engineer, shall provide to 
Developer the written notice required by Section 4.4(b) of the Development Agreement, 
notifying the Developer that the Developer’s remaining $1,250,000 contribution is needed and 
due to be paid to the City no later than 60 days after the date of the City’s written notice to 
Developer. The City shall make its $1,250,000 payment to the Mobility Authority no later than 
75 days after the 90 Day Notice is provided to the City; provided that the City has received the 
$1,250,000 payment from the Developer. The Mobility Authority has no obligation to publish its 
notice of bid solicitation for the construction contract for the Project until the City has paid the 
$1,250,000 in funds required by this Agreement.  If the Project is not completed by December 
31, 2015, the Mobility Authority shall refund the $1,250,000 payment to the City.  

5. Funding Obligation of the Mobility Authority. The Mobility Authority will pay, from its 
own funds or from funds obtained from sources other than the City, all Project Costs incurred 
that exceed the $1,250,000 payment from the City. 

6. Term and Termination. Subject to the following, this Agreement shall be effective as of 
the date first written above and shall continue in force and effect until the first to occur of the 
following events: (a) the Project is completed; or (b) the Parties mutually agree to terminate this 
Agreement. 

7. Notices. All notices, demands or other requests, and other communications required or 
permitted under this Agreement or which any Party may desire to give to the other Party shall be 
in writing and shall be deemed to be given on the date of receipt by the Party to whom the notice 
is either (i) hand-delivered, with written receipt of the notice provided by the receiving Party, or 
(ii) delivered by facsimile or electronic mail transmission (the latter of scanned documents in 
formats such as .pdf or .tif) for which a confirmation of receipt by the receiving Party has been 
obtained by the sending Party, at the respective addresses set forth below, or at such other 
address as a Party may from time to time designate by written notice to the other Party as herein 
required: 

MOBILITY AUTHORITY: Mike Heiligenstein, Executive Director 
     Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
     3300 N. IH-35, Suite 300 
     Austin, TX 78705 



 

 

Page 3 of 4 

     (512) 966-9784 (facsimile) 
     Email address: mheiligenstein@ctrma.org 
 
WITH COPY TO:  Andrew Martin, General Counsel 
     Central Texas Regional Mobility Authority 
     3300 N. IH-35, Suite 300 
     Austin, TX 78705 
     (512) 225-7788 (facsimile) 
     Email address: amartin@ctrma.org 
 
CITY:    Kent Cagle, City Manager 
     City of Leander 
     200 West Willis Street 
     Leander, TX 78641 
     (512) 259-1605 (facsimile) 
     Email address: kcagle@leandertx.gov 
 
WITH A COPY TO:  Paige Saenz, City Attorney 
     City of Leander 
     223 W. Anderson, Suite A-105 
     Austin, TX 78752 
     (512) 323-5773 (facsimile) 
     Email address: paige@cityattorneytexas.com 

 
8. Calculation of Days.  Unless otherwise specified, each reference in this Agreement to a day 
or days refers to a calendar day; however, if the last day of any period described in this 
Agreement is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday observed by either Party, the period is 
extended to include the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday observed by 
either Party. 

9. Prior Written Agreements. This Agreement is without regard to any and all prior written 
contracts or agreements between the Parties regarding any other subject matter and does not 
modify, amend, ratify, confirm, or renew any such other prior contract or agreement between the 
Parties. 

10. Other Services. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create, by implication or 
otherwise, any duty or responsibility of either of the Parties to undertake or not to undertake any 
other service, or to provide or not to provide any service, except as specifically set forth in this 
Agreement or in a separate written instrument executed by both Parties. 

11. Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify, or 
amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to either of the Parties nor to create any 
legal rights or claims on behalf of any third party. Neither of the Parties waives, modifies, or 
alters to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of governmental immunity under 
the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States. 

mailto:mheiligenstein@ctrma.org
mailto:amartin@ctrma.org
mailto:kcagle@leandertx.gov
mailto:paige@cityattorneytexas.com


 

 

Page 4 of 4 

12. Amendments and Modifications. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except 
in writing and executed by both Parties to this Agreement and authorized by their respective 
governing bodies. 

13. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable 
any other provision hereof, but rather this entire Agreement will be construed as if not containing 
the particular invalid or unenforceable provision(s), and the rights and obligations of the Parties 
shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The Parties acknowledge that if any 
provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is their desire and 
intention that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the 
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this Agreement and be deemed to be 
validated and enforceable. 

14. Venue. The parties agree that all disputes that arise out of this Agreement are governed by 
the laws of the State of Texas and venue for all purposes herewith shall be in Williamson 
County, Texas. 

15. Assignment. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a party may not assign this 
Agreement or subcontract the performance of services without first obtaining the written consent 
of the other party. 

16. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall be considered fully 
executed as of the date first written above, when both Parties have executed an identical 
counterpart, notwithstanding that all signatures may not appear on the same counterpart. 

The Parties are signing this agreement to be effective on the date stated in the introductory 
clause. 

 
CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL  MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 
 

By: ________________________________ 

Mike Heiligenstein, Executive Director       
 
 
 
CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 

Kent Cagle, City Manager       
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  A Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas, Accepting the petition for 
annexation of a 121.748 acres, more or less, tract of land located in Williamson County, Texas; 
setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings and other related matters. 
  
Background:  The resolution accepts the petition for voluntary annexation of the Greatwood 
tract.  The property is located off of CR 280 and is subject to a development agreement approved 
by the City Council on September 30, 2013. The resolution sets the two public hearings for July 
3, 2014 July 17, 2014.    The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for August 7, 2014 and 
the second and final reading is scheduled for August 21, 2014.  
     
Origination:  Applicant 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approving the resolution 
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution with exhibits 
2. Annexation Schedule 
3. Property Exhibit 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 5/7/2014 



  

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  ____________________     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF A 121.748, MORE OR LESS, ACRES 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the following property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 

All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 121.748 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described in the 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 3, 2014 and July 17, 2014.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

Section 3.  Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 



  

 

 

ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of May, 2014. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  



  

 

 

Exhibit “A”  
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 



  

 

 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 



  

 

 

 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 



  

 

 

customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof 
as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of 
facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-
site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the 
same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in 
accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be 
installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly 
situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property 
owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 



  

 

 

  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 

 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 

and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  

 
 

 































CR 279

CR 280

LIVE OAK RD

OAK CREEK RD

TERRY LN

SHORT RD

GLORY LN

MOCKINGBIRD HILL

VA
LL

EY
 VI

EW
 R

D

CR 279

Greatwood

Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ
County Line
Proposed Annexation Area

Ë
0 500 1,000

Feet

Greatwood
Voluntary

Annexation



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
GREATWOOD SUBDIVISION +/- 121.748 ACRES 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 15, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 3, 2014 and July 17, 2014; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 2, 2014 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 18, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 2, 2014** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE; 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 3, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 17, 2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 7, 2014* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 21, 2014; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the May 
1st First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 19   

 

 
Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Agenda Subject:  A Resolution of The City Of Leander, Texas, accepting the petition for 
annexation of a parcel of land being 41.669 acres, more or less, located in Williamson County, 
Texas; setting an annexation schedule; providing for open meetings and other related matters. 
  
Background:  The resolution accepts the petition for voluntary annexation of the Wilde tract.  
The property is located off of Hero Way east of CR 270. The resolution sets the two public 
hearings for July 3, 2014 July 17, 2014.    The first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for 
August 7, 2014 and the second and final reading is scheduled for August 21, 2014.  
  
     
Origination:  Applicant 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approving the resolution 
 
Attachments:  

1. Resolution with exhibits 
2. Annexation Schedule 
3. Property Exhibit 
 

Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 5/7/2014 



  

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  ____________________     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE 
PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF A 41.669, MORE OR LESS, ACRES 
LAND LOCATED IN WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS; SETTING AN 
ANNEXATION SCHEDULE; PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner of certain property located within Williamson County, Texas, has 
petitioned the City of Leander, Texas, (herein the “City”), a home-rule City, for annexation of said 
property, more particularly described herein (the “subject property”),  into the City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits of the City 
and the owners have made application for annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such petition for annexation, the City Council 
finds that the property is exempt from the City’s annexation plan pursuant to § 43.052 (h)(2) of the 
Local Government Code; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the subject property 
by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal action now in 
force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may be hereafter adopted;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.     
 
  Section 2.  Proceedings.  The petition for annexation of the following property, including the 
abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into the City and the draft services 
plan shown in Exhibit “B”, submitted by Petitioner, are hereby accepted:   
 

All those certain tracts or parcels of land being 41.669 acres, more or less, located in 
Williamson County, Texas, and being more particularly shown and described in the 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.    

 
Two public hearings are set for the dates of July 3, 2014 and July 17, 2014.  Notice of such hearings 
shall be posted and the hearings shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation 
request. 
 

Section 3.  Severability. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 



  

 

 

ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect and 
to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable. 

 
Section 4.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Tex. Gov't. Code. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 15th day of May, 2014. 

 
 
ATTEST:      THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary    Christopher Fielder, Mayor 

  

  



  

 

 

Exhibit “A”  
 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 



  

 

 

Exhibit “B” 
 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES PLAN 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE 

ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF LEANDER 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for a tract of land described more fully hereinafter (referred to herein as the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.056, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires a service plan be adopted with the 
annexation ordinance;  
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently within 
the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the same terms 
and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapt. 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the following services will be provided for the subject property on the 
effective date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Plan, the 
following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by the present personnel and equipment of the City fire fighting force and the 

volunteer fire fighting force with the limitations of water available.  Radio response for 
Emergency Medical Services with the present personnel and equipment. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 



  

 

 

 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. 
 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. 
 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall be 
temporarily zoned “SFR-1-B” with the intent to rezone the subject property upon request of the 
landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council will consider 
rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests submitted by the 
landowner(s) or authorized city staff.   

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services will 
be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided in this Plan:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions thereof, 
by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility in whose 
jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance 
with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the 
extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the subject 
properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the subject properties 
and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City utility department on 
the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 



  

 

 

customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The system will be accepted and maintained by the City in accordance with 
its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  New water line extensions will be installed and 
extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly situated 
customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a water well 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject 
properties’ owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof 
as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner shall 
construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and construction of 
facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as required in City 
ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject properties and any off-
site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City utility department on the 
same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all similarly situated areas and 
customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations and policies of the City in effect 
from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted and maintained by the City in 
accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater line extensions will be 
installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as with other similarly 
situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a request for service is 
submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued use of a septic system 
that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in compliance with all applicable 
rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may continue until the subject property 
owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 



  

 

 

  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 
necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 

 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 

and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with established 

policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The property 
owner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service the 
property.    

 
(3)   Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property or 
redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a developer in 
a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or redevelopment.  
No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject property the same 
as similarly situated properties. 
 
(4)  Term.  If not previously expired, this service plan expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)  Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Service Plan is 
attached.  

 
 

 















CR 270

HERO WAY

RM 2243

BAKER LN

CR
 26

9

183A TOLL RD FR NB

183A TOLL RD NB

MI
KE

S 
WA

Y

JENNIFER LN

AIR
PO

RT D
R

PVR 918

LEN BAR LN

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

183A TOLL RD SB

HAWKINS DR
NORWOOD DR

RM 2243

Larson Commercial

Leander City Limits
Leander ETJ
County Line
Proposed Annexation Area

Ë
0 500 1,000

Feet

Larson Commercial
Voluntary Annexation



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
GREATWOOD SUBDIVISION +/- 121.748 ACRES & WILDE/LARSON COMMERCIAL +/- 41.669 ACRES 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
May 15, 2014 
 

COUNCIL BY WRITTEN RESOLUTION Directs 
notification to land owners; and sets two (2) Public 
Hearings July 3, 2014 and July 17, 2014; Council directs 
development of service plan for area to be annexed.  

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.063 & 43.065; 
Public Hearings: are on or after the 40th day 
but before 20th day before institution of 
proceedings.  

By June 2, 2014 NOTICE TO property owners & utility providers  Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.062(a) 
June 18, 2014** 
Publish notice of First 
Public Hearing and 
send school district 
notice 
 
July 2, 2014** 
Publish notice of  
Second Public 
Hearings  

NEWSPAPER NOTICES RE: FIRST AND SECOND 
PUBLIC HEARINGS; (If applicable, certified Notice to 
Railroad). POST NOTICE OF HEARINGS ON CITY’S 
WEBSITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS 
COMPLETE; 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the First Public Hearing.)  

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before 1st and 2nd public hearings.  Loc. 
Gov’t Code, §43.063 (c). 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code § 43.905; send school 
district notice not less than 10 days nor more 
than 20 days before the First Public Hearing. 

Ten days after the date 
the first notice of 
Public Hearing is 
published 

LAST DAY FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN 
PROTEST BY RESIDENTS (10 days after first 
newspaper notice) 

Site hearing required if 10% of adult 
residents of tracts protest within 10 days after 
1st newspaper notice. Loc. Gov’t Code, § 
43.063 (b) 

July 3, 2014* 1st PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (Not more than 40 days before the 1st reading of 
ordinance) REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065.  

July 17, 2014* 2nd PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENT SERVICE 
PLAN (At least 20 days before 1st reading of ordinance.) 
REGULAR MEETING  

Not less than 20 days nor more than 40 days 
before reading of ordinance.  Loc. Gov’t 
Code, §§ 43.063(a) & 43.065. 

Institution Date 
August 7, 2014* 

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Date of institution of proceedings.  Not less 
than 20 days from the second public hearing 
nor more than 40 days from the first public 
hearing. 

August 21, 2014; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the May 
1st First Reading   

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Not more than 90 days after 1st reading of 
Ordinance § 43.064. 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders 

 

*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notices to paper by 5p.m. the preceding Wednesday  
 



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 

 

Executive Summary 

May 15, 2014 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Addendum to Memorandum of Agreement  
between Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and the City of Leander dated February 6, 2014 
 
Background:   This Addendum to Memorandum of Agreement between Howard 
Barkley Wedemeyer and the City of Leander dated February 6, 2014, provides for an 
alternative method of continuous livestock watering using stock tanks and hauled, non-
potable water in order to allow discontinuation of retail water service to the Wedemeyer 
property by Chisholm Trail Special Utility District (CTSUD).  This discontinuation of 
service is the required initial step in the process of decertifying and removing CTSUD’s 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) for the Wedemeyer property.  After the 
completion of the decertification process, the City of Leander shall pursue certification of 
water and wastewater CCN’s for the Wedemeyer property and other properties within 
Leander’s ETJ located north of the South San Gabriel River in order to provide retail 
water and wastewater service for those areas. 
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  Approximately $5,000 from Utility Fund with GL# to be 
determined. 
 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval of the Addendum to Memorandum of 
Agreement between Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and the City of Leander dated 
February 6, 2014. 
 
Attachments:   Addendum to Memorandum of Agreement between Howard Barkley 
Wedemeyer and the City of Leander dated February 6, 2014 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 



{W0616491.6}  

Addendum to Memorandum of Agreement  
between Howard Barkley Wedemeyer and the City of Leander dated February 6, 2014 

 
This Addendum to Memorandum of Agreement (this “Addendum”) is entered effective as of the ___ day 
of __________, 2014 (the “Effective Date”) between the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”), a home rule 
municipality located in Williamson County, Texas, and Howard Barkley Wedemeyer (the “Owner”), an 
individual and the owner of approximately 924 acres of land located within the incorporated limits and 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City (the “Property”), and is as follows: 

 Whereas, the parties entered that certain Memorandum of Agreement dated February 6, 2014 
(the MOA”), in which the parties set forth the terms and conditions under which the parties would 
cooperate to have the City provide retail water utility service for the Property; and 

 Whereas, the City benefits from becoming the retail water utility provider to the Property by 
increasing the number of its water customers, which spreads the cost of providing water service over a 
larger customer base and helps control the cost of service; and  

 Whereas, the City has adequate water supply to serve the Property; 

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, including the specific covenants and 
agreements set forth in this Addendum and the MOA, the City and the Owner agree as follows: 

1. The City will provide four 2,500 gallon storage tanks (the “Storage Tanks”) and one 169 
gallon galvanized stock tank (the “New Stock Tank”) to the Owner for water storage for the 
three stock tanks currently located on the Property and the New Stock Tank (collectively, the 
“Stock Tanks”) in order to supply water to the Owner’s cattle on the Property. 

2. The City will purchase, deliver and set up the Storage Tanks and the New Stock Tank at the 
locations generally described on Exhibit A, will connect the Storage Tanks to the Stock 
Tanks, and will fill the Storage Tanks with water on or before May 31, 2014.  The specific 
locations for the Storage Tanks and New Stock Tank will be determined by the Owner in 
cooperation with the City.  The date on which the Storage Tanks and New Stock Tank are 
delivered, the Storage Tanks are connected to the Stock Tanks and the Storage Tanks are 
filled with water in order to supply water to Owner’s cattle as provided above is referred to in 
this Addendum as “the Water Supply Completion Date”. 

3. The City will deliver non-potable water to the Storage Tanks on a temporary basis upon a 
schedule sufficient to assure that water is available for the cattle on the Property at all times 
and otherwise within twenty-four hours of request by the Owner or his designee.  The Owner 
will pay $50.00 per month per Storage Tank for such service.  The City will provide the 
temporary water service until such time the Owner begins receiving water service for the 
Stock Tanks from  the City through a City water line or the Owner begins receiving water 
service for the Stock Tanks from another utility.   In order to assure the health of the Owner’s 
cattle, the City’s obligation to provide temporary water service will survive termination of the 
MOA, as amended by this Addendum, until one of the conditions specified in the preceding 
sentence is met or the parties otherwise agree. 

4. The City will reimburse the Owner for the cost of obtaining connections for four meters to 
serve the Stock Tanks (including the cost of replacing the meters, if they are removed at the 



{W0616491.6}  

time service is discontinued, as provided in paragraph 5) for potable water service from 
CTSUD, or Georgetown, as appropriate, in the event the parties determine that the City will 
not provide retail water service to the Property, the Owner’s request for decertification of the 
Property from CTSUD’s CCN is denied and the parties determine that the request will not be 
resubmitted, or the MOA, as amended by this Addendum, terminates.  This agreement to 
reimburse will survive termination of the MOA, as amended. 

5. The Owner will notify CTSUD to discontinue CTSUD water service through the existing 
meters that serve the three existing Stock Tanks and the pond at the southeast corner of 
Ronald Reagan and Kaufman Loop and take any other action reasonably required by CTSUD 
in connection with the discontinuance of such service within three days following the Water 
Supply Completion Date.  Subject to the terms of the MOA, as amended by this Addendum, 
the Owner will support decertification of the Property from CTSUD’s CCN and certification 
of the Property to the City’s CCN. 

6. The date for completion of construction of Segment 1 and the design of Segment 2 set forth 
in Paragraph 3 of the MOA is extended from January 1, 2015 to March 1, 2015, subject to 
extension due to force majeure.  The earliest date for the City’s completion of the 
construction of Segment 2 set forth in Paragraph 3 of the MOA is extended from July 1, 2015 
to September 1, 2015.  The date after which the MOA may be terminated if the Approvals 
have not been received is extended from September 1, 2014 to November 1, 2014.  The 
Owner will not unreasonably withhold its approval of further extensions of the date after 
which the MOA may be terminated if the Approvals have not been received until March 1, 
2015 if the City is diligently pursuing the Approvals, the City has commenced construction of 
Segment 1 of the Waterline and is diligently proceeding with such construction towards 
completion and such extensions would not conflict or be inconsistent with the Owner’s 
contractual obligations to third parties, including contract purchasers.  

7. All terms delineated with initial capital letters in this Addendum that are defined in the MOA 
have the same meanings in this Addendum as in the MOA.  Other terms have the meanings 
commonly ascribed to them. 

8. Except as specifically provided in this Addendum, the terms and provisions of the MOA will 
continue to govern the rights and obligations of the parties, and all provisions and covenants 
of the MOA, as amended by this instrument, will remain in full force and effect.  In the event 
of any inconsistency between the MOA and this Addendum, this Addendum will control and 
modify the terms and provisions of the MOA. 
 

THE CITY: 
 
City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ 
 Christopher Fielder 
 
 Its Mayor 
 



{W0616491.6}  

THE OWNER: 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Howard Barkley Wedemeyer 

 

 
 
 


	Agenda
	Item #5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #13
	Item #14
	Item #15
	Item #16
	Item #17
	Item #18
	Item #19
	Item #20

	Text1: -1


